4 Title: Housing Cabinet Member Meeting
&l@l& Date: 22 July 2008
Brighton & Hove | Time: 4.00pm
City Council Venue Committee Room 1, Hove Town Hall

Members: | Councillor:
Caulfield (Cabinet Member)

(or following the conclusion of the Housing
Management Consultative Committee)

Contact: Martin Warren

Senior Democratic Services Officer
01273 291058
martin.warren@brighton-hove.gov.uk

E\ The Town Hall has facilities for wheelchair users,
(4 including lifts and toilets

An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for
anyone wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter
and infra red hearing aids are available for use
during the meeting. If you require any further
information or assistance, please contact the
receptionist on arrival.

FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are
instructed to do so, you must leave the building by
the nearest available exit. You will be directed to
the nearest exit by council staff. It is vital that you
follow their instructions:

¢ You should proceed calmly; do not run and do
not use the lifts;

¢ Do not stop to collect personal belongings;

e Once you are outside, please do not wait
immediately next to the building, but move
some distance away and await further
instructions; and

¢ Do not re-enter the building until told that it is
safe to do so.

Cabinet Member Meeting
S

Democratic Services democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk



Democratic Services: Meeting Layout

. Speaker !

Director Councillor Democratic
Caulfield Services
Officer
Officer in Lawyer
Attendance
Officer in Opposition
Attendance Spokes
person
Officer in Leader of
Attendance the
Opposition
Officer in : Member :
Attendance ' Speaker |
' Public

Members in Attendance

Officers in Attendance

Public Seatina

Press




HOUSING CABINET MEMBER MEETING

AGENDA

Part One

Page

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

PROCEDURAL BUSINESS

(a) Declarations of Interest by all Members present of any personal
interests in matters on the agenda, the nature of any interest and
whether the Members regard the interest as prejudicial under the
terms of the Code of Conduct.

(b) Exclusion of Press and Public - To consider whether, in view of the
nature of the business to be transacted, or the nature of the
proceedings, the press and public should be excluded from the
meeting when any of the following items are under consideration.

NOTE: Any item appearing in Part 2 of the Agenda states in its
heading the category under which the information disclosed in the
report is exempt from disclosure and therefore not available to the
public.

A list and description of the exempt categories is available for public
inspection at Brighton and Hove Town Halls.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

To note the minutes of the Housing Cabinet Member Meeting held on 4
June 2008 (copy attached).

CABINET MEMBER'S COMMUNICATIONS

ITEMS RESERVED FOR DISCUSSION

(a) ltems reserved by the Cabinet Member
(b) Items reserved by the Opposition Spokesperson

(c) ltems reserved by Members, with the agreement of the Cabinet
Member.

NOTE: Public Questions, Written Questions form Councillors, Petitions,
Deputations, Letters from Councillors and Notices of Motion will be
reserved automatically.

PUBLIC QUESTIONS

(the closing date for receipt of public questions is Tuesday 15 July).



HOUSING CABINET MEMBER MEETING

20.

21,

22,

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS

(the closing date for receipt of written questions from councillors is

10.00am on Thursday 10 July).
No questions had been received by the date of publication.

PETITIONS

DEPUTATIONS

(the closing date for receipt of deputations is noon on Tuesday 15 July.)

LETTERS FROM COUNCILLORS

(the closing date for receipt of letters from councillors is 10.00am on

Thursday 10 July).
No letters had been received by the date of publication.

NOTICES OF MOTIONS REFERRED FROM COUNCIL

No Notices of Motion have been received.

MATTERS REFERRED FOR RECONSIDERATION

No matters have been referred.

REPORTS FROM OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEES

No reports have been received.

HOUSING GREEN PAPER OPTIONS STAGE 1 REPORT

Report of the Director of Adult Social Care & Housing (copy attached).

Contact Officer: Martin Reid Tel: 29-3321
Ward Affected: All Wards

TENDER FOR A CONTRACT FOR THE PROVISION OF A SECURITY
WHEEL CLAMPING SERVICE WITHIN BRIGHTON & HOVE
Report of the Director of Adult Social Care & Housing (copy attached).

Contact Officer: David Rook Tel: 29-3271
Ward Affected: All Wards

HOUSING STRATEGY 2008-2013: HEALTHY HOMES, HEALTHY
LIVES, HEALTHY CITY
Report of the Director of Adult Social Care & Housing (copy attached).

Contact Officer:  Andy Staniford Tel: 29-3159
Ward Affected: All Wards

19 - 28

29 -34



HOUSING CABINET MEMBER MEETING

30. HOUSING MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE REPORT 35-74
Report of the Director of Adult Social Care & Housing (copy attached).
Contact Officer:  John Austin-Locke Tel: 29-1008

31. EXTERNAL ENVELOPE REPAIRS TO SOMERSET & WILTSHIRE 75-78
HOUSE 2008

Report of the Director of Adult Social Care & Housing (copy attached).

Contact Officer:  Simon Throp Tel: 29-6806
Ward Affected: Queen's Park

The City Council actively welcomes members of the public and the press to attend its
meetings and holds as many of its meetings as possible in public. Provision is also made
on the agendas for public questions to committees and details of how questions can be
raised can be found on the website and/or on agendas for the meetings.

The closing date for receipt of public questions and deputations for the next meeting is 12
noon on the fifth working day before the meeting.

Agendas and minutes are published on the council’s website www.brighton-hove.gov.uk.
Agendas are available to view five working days prior to the meeting date.

Meeting papers can be provided, on request, in large print, in Braille, on audio tape or on
disc, or translated into any other language as requested.

For further details and general enquiries about this meeting contact Martin Warren, (01273
291058, email martin.warren@brighton-hove.gov.uk) or email
democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk

Date of Publication - Tuesday, 15 July 2008







1a
1a.1
1b
1b.1

1b.2

2.1

2.2

Item 16 on agenda

BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL
HOUSING CABINET MEMBER MEETING
4.00PM, 4 JUNE 2008
ROOM ONE HOVE TOWN HALL
MINUTES
Present: Councillor Caulfield, Cabinet Member for Housing.

Also in attendance:
Cabinet Member: Councillor Mears, Leader.

Other Members: Councillors; Simpson (Opposition Spokesperson), Elgood,
Morgan and Wrighton.

PART ONE

PROCEDURAL BUSINESS
Declarations of Interests
There were none.

Exclusion of Press and Public

The Committee considered whether the press and public should be excluded from
the meeting during the consideration of any items contained in the agenda, having
regard to the nature of the business to be transacted and the nature of the
proceedings and the likelihood as to whether, if members of the press and public
were present, there would be disclosure to them of confidential or exempt
information as defined in Schedule 12A, Part 5A, Section 100A(4) or 100 1 of the
Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).

RESOLVED - That the press and public be not excluded from the meeting.
TERMS OF REFERENCE

The Cabinet Member considered a report of the Director of Strategy & Governance
concerning the Terms of Reference of the Housing Cabinet Member Meeting (for
copy see minute book).

RESOLVED - That the Terms of Reference be noted.



HOUSING CABINET MEMBER MEETING 4 JUNE 2008

3.2

3.3

4.2

4.3

5.1

6.1

7.1

7.2

MINUTES

RESOLVED - That the minutes of the meeting of the Housing Committee held on
27 March 2008 be noted

In response to questions from the Opposition Spokesperson the Cabinet Member
explained that written reports on the Housing Green Paper and the Procurement
Strategy would be considered by both the Housing Management Consultative
Committee and the Housing Cabinet Member meeting in due course.

Cabinet Member was aware of issues being discussed in the press and local
community about Sheltered Housing. Formal feedback from the Sheltered Housing
Focus Group and related matters would be considered by the appropriate body in
due course.

CABINET MEMBER’S COMMUNICATIONS

Cabinet Member welcomed everyone to the inaugural Housing Cabinet Member
Meeting introducing officers and members.

Cabinet Member noted that the agenda for the first meeting was slight as it was
planned that everyone could take the opportunity to familiarise themselves with the
new arrangements.

Cabinet Member noted that housing would remain client focussed, with tenants at
the heart of housing management.

ITEMS RESERVED FOR DISCUSSION

RESOLVED - All items were reserved for discussion.
PUBLIC QUESTIONS

There were none.

WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS

The Cabinet Member reported that one written question had been received from
Councillor Morgan.

Councillor Morgan asked the following question:
‘Following the focus group review, can the Cabinet Member for Housing confirm

that an estate warden is being appointed to cover the Craven Vale estate, and give
a date for that warden taking up his/her post please?’



HOUSING CABINET MEMBER MEETING 4 JUNE 2008

7.3

The Cabinet Member replied,

‘In Autumn 2007, a short-term focus group of residents was established at the
request of the Chairman of Housing to review the Estates Service, on a citywide
basis. The results of this review were presented to Housing Management Sub-
Committee in January 2008.

The main role of a Community Warden is to link local communities with the council
and other organisations and act as the ‘eyes and ears’ of the housing management
service. The residents’ focus group reported the following findings in relation to the
post of Community Warden:

e That residents’ experiences of Community Wardens varied widely across
the city, from excellent to unsatisfactory

e That the work of the Community Wardens has more in common with the
work of the local housing offices than the Estates Service

e That parts of the Community Wardens’ job description duplicates tasks
carried out by other people working in the same communities e.g. PCSOs,
Mobile Wardens and Housing Officers.

To address these issues, the focus group recommended that the post of
Community Warden was moved from the Estates Service and reviewed.
Community Wardens and tenancy management staff welcomed this proposal and
the opportunity to work more closely together.

Following the focus group, the Community Warden post for Craven Vale was kept
vacant whilst a detailed review of the Estate Service took place to introduce the
recommendations of the focus group. The outcome of this exercise would be
reported to the Housing Management Consultative Committee and Housing
Cabinet Members Meeting.

As an interim measure, the Community Warden for the Albion Hill area was
covering the Craven Vale area. From this June, fortnightly surgeries were being
held at a community centre in Craven Vale. The warden would also have weekly
meetings with the Housing Officer for Craven Vale and spend between one and
two days per week on the Craven Vale estate. These arrangements would continue
until the Estate Service review was completed.’



HOUSING CABINET MEMBER MEETING 4 JUNE 2008

7.4

7.5

8.1

9.1

9.2

9.3
9.4

9.5

9.6

Councillor Morgan asked a supplementary question noting the length of time afforded
to the review and asked if it could genuinely be considered ‘short-term’.

Cabinet Member responded that getting the service right was key, and that the long-
term outcome was more important than making a quick decision. The length of the
review was in part, due to the summer recess and the timetabling of decision-making
meetings. She concluded that the interim arrangements had been provided in
recognition of the extensive review and that Tenants would continue to monitor the
service once the review had concluded.

PETITIONS
There were none.
DEPUTATIONS

The Cabinet Member reported that two Deputations had been received. The first
Deputation concerned 40 & 50 Brunswick Place, Hove and had been presented at
Council on 24 April 2008 by Mr. Pope.

The Cabinet Member welcomed Mr Pope to the meeting and noted the deputation as
presented at Council. She explained that a cross-party working group had been set up
to look at the area as a whole and would meet in June.

Discussions were taking place with Hove YMCA and the Children and Young Peoples
Trust Board regarding management of the property.

Since the incident with a tenant prior to Easter the buildings continued to be managed
as general needs temporary accommodation.

Overnight security had continued and there had been no further serious incidents of
nuisance at either properties.

Since April a few issues which had been reported and resolved forthwith.

A tenant who caused the damage immediately prior to Easter was removed and legal
action was being fast-tracked. Repairs at the property were near completion.

Mr Pope thanked the Cabinet Member for her comments.

The second Deputation concerned consultants, targets and ‘value for money’ and had
been presented at Council on 24 April 2008 by Mr. Melson.

The Cabinet Member welcomed Mr Melson to the meeting and noted the deputation
as presented at Council.

She confirmed that consultants would only be appointed following approval of a clear
business case and cost benefit analysis. Members would not make unnecessary use
consultants, preferring to maximise officers’ expertise and experience. Cabinet Member
was committed to reducing the costs of consultancy fees in housing revenue and
accounts budgets by £20M over the life of the thirty year business plan.

4



HOUSING CABINET MEMBER MEETING 4 JUNE 2008

9.7

9.8
10
10.1
11
11.1
12
121
13
13.1
14

141

14.2

Cabinet Member was committed to ensuring Housing Management services improved
and would use targets to measure improvement, though she agreed that targets should
not be overused. It was acknowledged that reaching a target did not always accurately
reflect customer values. Cabinet Member was keen to maintain open dialogue with
customers to set local performance targets and ensure that performance reports were
discussed at the new Housing Management Consultative Committee.

Mr Melson thanked the Cabinet Member for her comments.

LETTERS FROM COUNCILLORS

There were none.

NOTICE OF MOTION REFERRED FROM COUNCIL

There were none.

MATTERS REFERRED FOR RECONSIDERATION

There were none.

REPORTS FROM OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

There were none.

REPORT OF THE HOUSING MANAGEMENT SUB-COMMITTEE 11 MARCH 2008

The Cabinet Member considered a report of the Director of Strategy & Governance
concerning the decisions taken by the Housing Management Sub-Committee on 11
March 2008 (for copy see minute book).

RESOLVED - That the report be noted.

The meeting concluded at 4.25 pm

Signed Chair

Dated this day of 2008



HOUSING CABINET MEMBER MEETING 4 JUNE 2008



HOUSING CABINET Agenda ltem 27
MEMBER MEETING Brighton & Hove City Council

Subject: Housing Green Paper Options Stage 1 Report
Date of Meeting: 22 July 2008

Report of: Director of Adult Social Care and Housing
Contact Officer: Martin Reid Tel: 29-3321

E-mail: Martin.reid@brighton-hove.gov.uk

Key Decision:  Yes Forward Plan No: Cab 2165
Wards Affected: All

FOR GENERAL RELEASE

1.

1.1

1.2

2.1

2.2

2.3

SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT:

The council has reviewed the options set out in the Government’s Housing
Green Paper Homes for the Future: more affordable, more sustainable, with
the support of external financial and legal expertise from Pricewaterhouse
Coopers (PwC) and Trowers & Hamlins (Trowers). Stage 1 — the detailed
assessment of options for meeting the council’s strategic objectives and
development of a proposal for the council to set up a viable Local Delivery
Vehicle (LDV) that meets these objectives — has now been completed.

The joint analysis undertaken by PwC and Trowers concludes that there is a
range of workable options for an LDV to meet the council’s corporate priorities
and strategic housing objectives. Financial modelling undertaken by PwC
indicates there is the potential for a viable business model which could raise up
to £45 million for the Housing Revenue Account (HRA).

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That the Cabinet Member for Housing approves to proceed to the proposed
development and finalisation phases of Stage 2 of this review and authorises the
Director of Adult Social Care and Housing to take all steps necessary to progress
the work.

That the Cabinet Member for Housing notes that any decision to implement the
finalised proposals would be made by Cabinet and the Cabinet Member for
Housing further notes the provisional outline timetable to set up any asset-
backed LDV, as outlined in section 3.17 of this report.

That the Cabinet Member for Housing approves consultation arrangements with
tenant and leaseholder representatives before the Cabinet takes any final
decision to establish an LDV, as outlined in section 4 of this report.



3.4

3.5

RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY
EVENTS:

Following the outcome of the tenants’ stock transfer ballot, officers have

reviewed strategic housing options to reflect the decision that the stock will be
retained by the council. The objectives for this review are:

To obtain best value from assets;
To bring in additional investment;
To meet housing need:

To promote regeneration; and

To assist with meeting Decent Homes.

Given tenants’ overwhelming rejection of the stock transfer proposal, the council

is also very clear there should be:
No RSL involvement;
No freehold transfer; and

No transfer of tenanted properties.

In parallel, the Government has been setting out various options for local
authorities to play a stronger role in addressing the housing needs of all
their residents. The Housing Green Paper Homes for the Future: more
affordable, more sustainable, published by the Department for Communities
and Local Government in July 2007, outlines various types of local delivery
or similar special purpose vehicle councils could set up to make the most of
existing homes and land to lever in investment. Fourteen councils are in the
process of creating Local Housing Companies with government support via
English Partnerships and another 14 Community Land Trusts are also being
piloted.

In light of that consultation paper, and in response to notices of motion to
Policy & Resources Committee in November 2007 concerning Community
Land Trusts, Housing Management Sub-Committee, Housing Committee
and Policy & Resources Committee were updated on the range of
opportunities offered in the Housing Green Paper.

At Housing Management Sub-Committee on 11 March, Housing Committee
on 27 March and Policy & Resources Committee on 3 April 2008 members
noted:

the range of options and opportunities offered in the Housing Green paper
and that these were to be examined in detail in order to ascertain whether a
sustainable case could be made for further development in order to support
strategic housing and other priorities $ the City;



3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

that external financial and legal advice was being sought in order to support
officers to undertake detailed analysis of the practicalities of taking forward
any Housing Green Paper options or opportunities; and

that the Chairman of Housing was committed to ensuring that a detailed
report on this analysis of options be brought forward through the council
decision making process and the case made to enable the further
development of any appropriate model.

PwC and Trowers successfully tendered in a competitive procurement process
and were appointed as financial and legal advisers for Stage 1. Their role is to
support officers in the assessment of options with their specialist expertise and
financial modelling. Both firms have extensive experience of advising local
authorities on setting up LDVs to meet their housing priorities. They also liaise
directly with government departments on the new models being developed to
access funding for investment in housing without the need to use (or transfer
stock to) RSLs.

The council’s brief set out the objectives for the review, together with the
requirement that there should be no RSL involvement, no freehold transfer and
no transfer of tenanted properties (see paragraphs 3.1 and 3.2 above). In
addition, the council would work within the limit under the relevant legislation of
letting an LDV use a maximum of 499 empty properties over a five year period.

PwC and Trowers’ analysis of the options and opportunities referred to in
the Housing Green Paper started with an assessment against key criteria to
filter out those options which are not appropriate to meet the council’s
current objectives. Those options which are not suitable for the proposed
scale of the project were discounted at this stage. This analysis and the
criteria used are detailed in Appendix 1.

After consideration, Community Land Trusts (CLTs) were not recommended
as the appropriate initial vehicle. The primary purpose of CLTs is to hold
land and other assets to promote social, economic and environmental
sustainability of a specified local geographical community, usually at
neighbourhood level. Increased land value is retained and reused by the
CLT for the benefit of its community. Members of the CLT would normally
be drawn from the local community, as would a significant proportion of the
board, and the CLT would report to the local community and be accountable
to it in a variety of ways. As investment is required across the council’s
stock, it would be difficult to create the local geographic focus that is
suggested for a CLT at this time. However, three potential options were
identified for including CLTs at a later date and these are outlined in
Appendix 1.

The advisers concluded that there is a range of workable options for an

LDV to meet the council’s objectives, including a variety of both potential

delivery structures and of the legal form an LDV could take. In particular,

advice has been received on local authority control over the LDV which
9



3.1

3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

would impact on the classification, powers to facilitate the setting up of an
LDV, the benefits and restrictions of charitable status and procurement and
contracting issues. There are a number of choices which the council can
make as to the LDV’s set up and relationship with the council, which would
be taken during Stage 2 of the review.

Financial modelling indicates a proposed business model could be viable.
The model is based on the council initially leasing to the LDV 106 HRA units
currently used for Temporary Accommodation, followed by up to a
maximum of 393 empty HRA properties over a 5 year period. The model
includes a payment by the LDV to the council of ¢c. £92,000 per property
leased, a total capital receipt of up to £45 million into the HRA. This receipt
would be exempt from the government’s pooling of housing capital receipts
regime provided the council passes a resolution to use the receipt for
affordable housing - which could include improvements to existing HRA
stock - or for regeneration projects.

The Temporary Accommodation units are scattered street properties owned by
the HRA, many having shared facilities and high maintenance and repair
requirements. They are currently occupied by non-secure tenants, whose
tenancy lasts around six months on average. Other HRA properties which may
be identified as suitable for leasing could include units currently held empty due
to the need for funding for major repairs. Leasing of any HRA properties would
require the consent of the Secretary of State and full Council.

The maximum number of units for leasing to an LDV over a five year period
would represent only 4% of HRA stock and a small proportion of turnover of
affordable social rented housing in the city; by way of illustration, 782 council
homes were let in the last financial year (excluding Temporary Accommodation).
In addition, the city’s supply of affordable rented housing is projected to increase
by over 500 new properties over the coming four years, subject to planning
consent etc., plus other social housing development in the pipeline for that
period.

As well as providing funding for the HRA, the model includes provision for the
LDV to refurbish the leased properties. The refurbished leased stock would be
used to provide a stable supply of good quality accommodation to homeless
households and other clients for whom the council has a duty to provide housing,
from the Children and Young People’s Trust, Learning Disabilities and Adult
Social Care. The council would have nomination rights to the leased properties
and there is an option for the council to be the landlord for a proportion of these
tenancies, under a leaseback scheme.

In conclusion, Stage 1 of the review indicates that there is potentially an
economically viable, legally robust way of achieving the council’s objectives
while working within the parameters set — in particular, that there should be
no freehold transfer, no RSL involvement or transfer of tenanted stock. The
proposed model could deliver:

- up to £45 million capital receipts to the HRA;

- funding to refurbish leased stock; and
10



3.16

3.17

4.1

4.2

4.3

- astable supply of temporary accommodation for homeless households and
other groups for whom the council has a duty to provide housing.

The practicalities of taking forward any Housing Green Paper options have
been analysed and a sustainable case has been made for further
development of this model in order to support strategic housing and other
priorities in the city. The next step is to progress this work to enable the
council to select a structure and vehicle tailor made to fit the council’s
specific financial circumstances and strategic objectives.

The provisional timetable for Stage 2 of the project is to develop and finalise the
proposals over the summer and early autumn, after rigorous testing of
assumptions and assessment of the impact on the LDV, HRA and General Fund.
Housing Management Consultative Committee and Area Panels are to be
consulted on the finalised proposal in the autumn, prior to seeking Cabinet
Member for Housing’s approval and the Cabinet taking the final decision whether
to establish an LDV later this financial year.

CONSULTATION

The Leader of the council has stated her commitment to openness and
transparency with tenants on proposals for the future of the housing stock.
The proposal to review Housing Green Paper options was presented to and
agreed by Housing Management Sub-Committee at its meeting on 11
March 2008, with tenant representatives in attendance.

The Housing Management Consultative Committee will consider the report on
the outcome of Stage 1 of the review prior to the Cabinet Member for Housing
meeting. HMCC will be asked to note the progress of the review and proposed
timetable, consultation and decision-making arrangements and to recommend
that the Cabinet Member for Housing approves to proceed to the proposed
development and finalisation phases of Stage 2 of this review and authorises the
Director of Adult Social Care and Housing to take all steps necessary to progress
the work.

Area Panels and the Housing Management Consultative Committee will be
consulted on finalised proposals before approval is sought to set up, or
lease any council stock to, any LDV.

FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:

5.1

Financial Implications:

The Base case financial model and business case developed as part of
Stage 1 includes a number of key assumptions. These assumptions, which
include asset values, conversion costs, revenue flows, funding costs and
operational costs will need to be vigorously tested and refined to establish a
final business case that is sufficiently robust to be used to secure
competitive commercial funding for the LDV. This work will form part of the

11



Stage 2 process should the Cabinet Member for Housing agree to proceed
to the next stage.

The Stage 1 financial model is based on the council granting 125 year
leases to the LDV with the option of a break clause after 30 years. The
model projects debt outstanding at 30 years of ¢ £40 million. The LDV
would therefore need to refinance the outstanding debt at year 30.

Key project risks identified by PwC and Trowers will be fully assessed in the
course of Stage 2.

Peter Sargent, Loans and Technical Manager, Strategic Finance
Legal Implications:

5.2  The recommendations in this report require the progress to date on seeking a
suitable LDV model to be noted and authority to progress the work to the next
stage. The LDV model selected during Stage 2 will not proceed to
implementation without consultation with tenants and Cabinet approval, thus at
this stage there are no further legal implications arising from the report itself. The
Council must take the Human Rights Act into account in respect of its actions but
it is not considered that any individual’s Human Rights Act rights would be
adversely affected by the recommendations in this report

Alison Leitch, Contract Lawyer
Equalities Implications:

5.3  There are no direct equalities implications to this report. Eventual actions in
regard to the Housing Green Paper will be taken with regard to equalities
issues.

Sustainability Implications:

5.4  The proposal to pursue the setting up of an LDV, enabling access to

funding to refurbish properties and meet strategic housing needs, would
contribute to achieving the following council priorities to address
sustainability as an integral part of all service delivery and contribute to the
UK's Sustainable Development Strategy:

(1)  Sustainable Consumption and Production - considering the impact of
products and materials across a whole life cycle;

(2) Climate Change and Energy — greater fuel efficiency and reduction in CO2
emissions;

(3)  Sustainable Communities - using engagement and partnership to reduce
poverty and environmental degradation.

12



Crime & Disorder Implications:

5.5 There are no implications for crime and disorder.

Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:

5.6 Risks and opportunities will be fully assessed when proposals are finalised
during Stage 2. Key project risks include appropriate consents, availability
of funding, EU procurement, interest rates, rental income and demand.

Corporate / Citywide Implications:

5.7  The outline proposal for setting up an LDV giving access to funding to
refurbish up to 499 properties in need of investment would support the
following council corporate priorities:

1) protect the environment whilst growing the economy;
2)  make better use of public money;

3) reduce inequality by improving opportunities;

4)  open and effective city leadership.

o~ o~ o~ o~

5.8  The impact on the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account will be fully
worked through in detail during Stage 2.

6. EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S):

6.1  This information is contained within the report and appendix.

7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS

7.1 To proceed to the next stage of this key project to meet the council’s corporate
priorities and strategic housing objectives.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices:
1. Stage 1: Analysis of Housing Green Paper options
Documents In Members’ Rooms

None

13



14



CABINET MEMBER MEETING

Housing Green Paper Options Stage 1 Report Appendix 1

Stage 1: Analysis of Housing Green Paper options

1. PwC and Trowers started their analysis of the options and opportunities
referred to in the Housing Green Paper with an assessment against key
criteria to filter out those options which are not appropriate to meet the
council’s current objectives. Those options which are not suitable for the
proposed scale of the project and were therefore discounted at this stage
are as follows:

(1) Urban Regeneration Companies, which are focused on specific geographic
areas in economic decline.

(2) Urban Development Corporations (UDCs), which are non departmental
public bodies established under the Local Government Planning and Land
Act 1980 with a broad remit to secure the regeneration of their designated
areas.

(3)  City Development Companies, which relate to city or city-region wide
economic development.

(4)  Single Estate Transformation Models, which focus on estates and the
establishment of sustainable mixed communities. This would be likely to
involve selective demolition; provision of new housing supply for home-
ownership, market sale and low-cost home ownership; social rented and
possibly council housing. Provision of new local infrastructure would also be
likely, such as a community centre, health centre, recreational facilities and
open space.

(5)  Community Land Trusts (CLTs) were not recommended as the appropriate
initial vehicle due to their very local geographic focus. The primary purpose
of CLTs is to hold land and other assets to promote social, economic and
environmental sustainability of a specified local geographical community,
usually at neighbourhood level. Increased land value is retained and reused
by the CLT for the benefit of its community. Members of the CLT would
normally be drawn form the local community, as would a significant
proportion of the board, and the CLT would report to the local community
and be accountable to it in a variety of ways. As investment is required
across the council’s stock, it would be difficult to create the local geographic
focus that is suggested for a CLT. However, three possible options were
identified for including CLTs into an LDV structure at a later date, set out in
section 5 below.

15



*%

CABINET MEMBER MEETING

2. Temporary to Settled Homes initiatives, which use rental income to repay
borrowing that has been used to buy a home instead of going to a private
landlord to pay for renting a property as temporary accommodation, were
identified as possibly achievable but more difficult to deliver than some of
the other viable options.

3. Local housing companies, local authority-owned companies, limited liability
partnerships and strategic housing and regeneration partnerships met the
initial assessment against key criteria and were then subjected to a more
detailed analysis.

>
g Py S c B
2 @ g- '§ k] .g- § & § g % %
S| 2| 8| & |cel 5|2 | 8| e |E |t
c — = = — O © o o) 5] c
<) ° @ b ct = > (¢} (@] 5 -
© & S a |a8| o e = 2 | S5l 2
Assessment of LDV options o = 5 > |3%| ® 2 g S | E8| B
against key criteria 3 *E‘ : 5 |5S| ¢ E s %‘ o= | 2
21 2| 5| S |35 &| 5| 2|2 |® >
= g £ 3 c 5 4 3] (] ) w o
o o =2 = 55 = 2 [a)] o o S
o o < E | P2 S b c > | o g
© 5 o 2 3 O s @
8 =) = @ (=
-
Suitable for proposed scale of v o v v v % v x < x v
project
Flexible and adaptable to meet -
future strategic objectives d n/a d Y d n/a d nla n/a nla Y
Potential to help meet current
investment gap v nla v v v nla v n/a nla n/a v
Capable of raising finance v n/a v 4 v n/a v n/a n/a n/a v
Able to support refurbishment
costs to meet required 4 n/a v v v n/a v n/a n/a n/a v
standards
Flexible to meet Council’s
responsibilities to a diverse 4 n/a v v v n/a v n/a n/a n/a v
range of client groups
Enables fast delivery of project v nla v v v nla v n/a nla n/a VR
Complementary to other
Council strategic polices (e.g. v n/a v v v n/a v n/a n/a n/a v
Procurement)
Within Council’'s powers v n/a v v v nla v n/a nla n/a v
Capable of satisfying VFM v n/a 4 4 v n/a v n/a n/a n/a v
Legend

This option has not been taken forward at this stage, but it has the potential for consideration in future projects.

The council cannot set up the LDV as a Limited Liability Partnership solely to take advantage of this type of legal
structure’s potential tax efficiency.

This option may be achievable but could be more difficult to deliver than some of the other viable options.

16



(1)

(2)

3)

CABINET MEMBER MEETING

The proposed structure would be based on the following, with the council
deciding on the legal form of the vehicle and whether it would be a charity
during the course of Stage 2 of the review.

Council
T

Swo
£
H
2
LA 29
3
-
=}
<
€= === ———

-
9
8
E]
I
5
5]
3
3
@

R

efur
Contract -

Management and i
Maintenance
Contract

LDV Tenancies

An alternative structure with a leaseback arrangement would be as follows:

Council .
Non secure council
T tenancies
Paymen
dwellings for leases [Ri reement?
& Loan Finance
= m

efur
Contract -

= === ———

R

Management and P
Maintenance
Contract

LDV Tenancies

The above structures and options would not preclude a CLT being
introduced to play a part in the future. Three possible ways of bringing a
CLT into the structure in the future were identified, as follows:

Passing on the council’s freehold interest in leased properties to a CLT, leaving
the LDV in place. This could be made difficult by funding issues and the LDV
inhibiting the CLT’s ability to exercise its community role.

Converting the LDV to a CLT. This could be impractical if the LDV’s stock is
scattered.

Passing the lease or a sub-lease on to one or more CLTs, which would become
the landlord of the properties. This seems the most practicable option and it
would be possible for the main lease between the council and LDV to permit sub-
leases to CLTs.

17



18



HOUSING CABINET Agenda Item 28
MEMBER MEETING Brighton & Hove City Council

Subject: Tender of a Contract for the Provision of a Security
Wheel Clamping Service within Brighton & Hove

Date of Meeting: 22 July 2008

Report of: Director of Adult Social Care & Housing

Contact Officer: Name: David Rook Tel:  29-3271

Head of Housing Management
(Central)

E-mail: david.rook@brighton-hove.gov.uk

Key Decision Yes Forward Plan Reference: HSG 2156
Wards Affected: All
FOR GENERAL RELEASE

1.2

2.2

3.1

SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT:

That the Housing Management Consultative Committee are invited to
comment on the proposal to request permission to tender for a contract to
provide a secure clamping service for Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
managed car parking and garage areas let to licence holders. Permission is
also sought that other directorates who would benefit from clamping on their
land, for example office car parks, could use the service.

Clamping is currently used to protect 25 HRA parking sites as a deterrent to
stop other drivers parking illegally. Other departments have also expressed an
interest in utilising clamping to protect their own sites, for example Property
and Design.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That the Housing Cabinet Member approve the tendering for a Security Wheel
Clamping Service within Brighton & Hove. This will enable these services to
commence on 31 January 2009.

That the comments of the Housing Management Consultative Committee are
noted at Housing Cabinet Member Meeting.

RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY
EVENTS:

Clamping was introduced as a pilot scheme to HRA managed car parks in
2004 in order to address the continued problems experienced by residents
who were renting spaces from the council but were frequently unable to
access them due to illegally parked vehicles.

19



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

The pilot scheme was initially set up to run for one year. To date 25 housing
sites have clamping provision, each one being set up in consultation with
local residents associations.

Clamping has proven to be the most cost effective and efficient way of
providing secure parking and has enabled the Housing Management
division’s Car Parks & Garages team to maximise income from many centrally
located parking areas by ensuring that those who pay for their spaces are
able to access them.

It has become apparent in recent months that there are other areas of the city
that would benefit from inclusion in the clamping contract. As this current
contract has been running for several years it is the right time to re tender in
order to secure a well managed and cost efficient service for the council as a
whole.

The existing contract for clamping on HRA land was terminated in November
2007 when the Clamping Contractor (SIG) withdrew services from the
Brighton Area. There is an ad-hoc service currently in place which is provided
by Guardian. This will be terminated once this contract has been awarded.

The proposed tender evaluation will be split 60/40. This split represents the
quality of the service and the charges made to vehicle owners who are
clamped, respectively.

The proposed contract will not provide clamping on public highways where
parking enforcement is contracted out to NCP. It would instead be used to
control parking on council owned sites such as car parking areas attached to
offices and HRA land.

The proposed contract period is three years with an option to extend for a
further one year at the council’s discretion.

All contractors are required to be registered with the Security Industry
Authority and operatives applying clamps are required to hold an individual
license from under the terms of the Private Security Authority Act 2001.

20



3.10 The timetable for procurement and implementation of the contract is shown
below. The contract would therefore be in place on 31 January 2009.

Task Duration (days) Start Date
Place Adverts in relevant journals 1 11/09/08
Receipt of expressions of interest 30 12/09/08
Evaluation of expressions of 15 13/10/08
interest

Send out Tender Documentation 1 29/10/08
Receipt of Tenders 31 30/10/08
Evaluate Tenders 15 01/12/08
Award of contract 1 16/12/08
Handover period 45 17/12/08

3.11 This report was considered earlier this year by Housing & City Support DMT,
TMT and P & R Chairs. Immediately before P & R Committee on 6 March
2008 a number of questions were raised by Councillors. It was
felt prudent to withdraw the report in order to allow time to answers to those
questions. Those questions related to:

Consideration of an in-house clamping team (see Section 6)

The appeals process (see below)

The proposed release fee (see below)

Concerns that the current contractor has been involved in the
tender specification and may bid for the contract (see below)

000D

312 Appeals Process
The current appeals process in the existing contract and in the draft contract
specification has been agreed through the Car Parks and Garages Working
Group. The group consists of 8 elected tenant and leaseholder
representatives across the city.

3.13 In the first instance the complainant is required to appeal directly to the
clamping company as they are in a position to investigate the matter. The
contractor uses the appeal system as an opportunity to check that their patrol
officers are carrying out the immobilisation of vehicles according to agreed
policies and procedures and those of the client, in this case Brighton & Hove
City Council.

3.14 Under the current arrangements Guardian have an appeals panel made up of
four staff members including the Company Director who meet on a weekly
basis to discuss any appeals that have been received. This meeting

21



3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19

3.20

considers appeals across all managed sites and not just those belonging to
Brighton & Hove City Council. The evidence from each particular clamping
incident is reviewed including timed photographs of the vehicle. These cover
the time it was discovered and the time of clamping; their decision is based on
this evidence and the circumstances surrounding the incident in question. A
letter confirming the outcome is then sent directly to the claimant.

For Housing Management sites and in instances where the appeal has been
turned down the letter from Guardian contains the following paragraph:

If you are unhappy with the outcome of your appeal you can make a formal
complaint to Brighton & Hove City Council. The address to write to is Brighton
and Hove City Council Standards and Complaints Team FREEPOST
SEA2560 BRIGHTON BN1 1ZW or by email to complaints@brighton-

hove.qgov.uk'.

Once the complaint is received a further investigation is undertaken including
requesting copies of all documentation, timings and photographic evidence
from the clamping company. Thereafter a decision as to whether the clamp
was applied in accordance with the contract and Housing Management’s
arrangements with the contractors. The decision to clamp will either be upheld
or rebuked. If it is rebuked the clamping charge is refunded in full. If the
vehicle owner is not happy with the response at this stage they may escalate
their complaint to Stage 2 of the corporate complaints procedure and can
ultimately request an Ombudsman enquiry.

On balance it is important that the contractor initially reviews if the clamp was
applied correctly and only after that is the independent review carried out by a
council officer.

The Proposed Release Fee

The proposed release fee has also been agreed by the Car Parks and
Garages Working Group and will initially remain at the current level of £100.
There will be scope within the contract to raise the release fee to £125, which
is in accordance with recommendations from the British Parking Association.

Consultation with Guardian in Drawing up the Contract Specification

Concerns were expressed that the previous report (Section 4) refers to
Guardian being involved in the consultation process. This is perhaps an
erroneous statement and apologies are offered for any confusion officers may
have caused. Guardian were brought in to provide a clamping service to
Housing sites after the original contractors, Security International Group,
withdrew from the Brighton area at very short notice in November 2007.

At that time Housing Management were already considering retendering the
contract and had a new draft contract in place. This had been agreed

22



4.2

43

5.

internally and by the Tenant and Leaseholder Car Parks and Garages
Working Group. Guardian were asked for their views on the new contract and
any operational issues it may have raised. No changes were made to the draft
contract specification as a result of this discussion. Guardian have not been
involved in the writing of the contract or been consulted in any way other than
described.

CONSULTATION

Consultation is currently underway with a view to determining:

o A specification with quality criteria which meets stakeholder
needs

o Evaluation criteria and weighting for determining the most
economically advantageous tender (an appropriate mix of cost
and quality)

Those who have been, or who are, involved in the consultation process
include:

o Current contractor

o Similar Local Authorities

o Stakeholders — Car Parks & Garages Working Group (made up
of tenants and leaseholder representatives and council staff).

Other departments who have expressed an interest in joining this contract
include Housing Strategy, Adult Social Care and Property and Design.
Examples of the sites where clamping would be desirable include the car park
attached to offices at 86 Denmark Villas, Hove; New Steine Hostel, Brighton;
commercially let car parking spaces in Chapel Street, Brighton.

FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:

Financial Implications:

5.1

There will be no direct costs to the council in operating a security wheel
clamping service, the contract will be funded by the contractor keeping the
revenue generated by the service. There will be some internal staff time
required to manage the contract but this will be absorbed within existing
staffing resources. This is a 3-year contract with the option to extend for a
further 1 year.

The contract will allow the Housing Revenue Account to maximise the income
from its car parks, as the service will minimise illegal parking.

23



Finance Officer Consulted: Monica Brooks, Principal Accountant Date: 31
March 2008

Legal Implications:

5.2

Despite the zero value of this contract to the council, it should be tendered in
accordance with a contract that is above the EU threshold for services
contracts. The procurement strategy and the procurement timetable as set out
in the report comply with both the EU procurement legislation and the
council’s Contract Standing Orders. The council must also take the Human
Rights Act 1998 into account in respect of its actions, but it is not considered
that any individual’s Human Rights would be adversely affected by the
recommendations in this report.

Section 21(1) of the Housing Act 1985 empowers councisl to control parking
on HRA land. (Akumah -v- Hackney LBC)

Lawyer consulted: Alison Leitch Date: 25 May 2007

Equalities Implications:

5.3

An equalities impact assessment has not been carried out on the current
clamping service.

Sustainability Implications:

54

There are no direct sustainability implications.

Crime & Disorder Implications:

5.5

Car parking is often a contentious issue and can lead to disorder when a
resident cannot access the space for which they are paying. Clamping will
ensure there is a real deterrent to prevent illegal parking, particularly for
spaces that are let and managed by Housing Management.

Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:

5.6

The Key Risks are: -

[ Failure to let the contract
O Failure to provide the service and protect licence holders spaces
0 Failure to manage this contract effectively leading to complaints

24



O Failure to maximise income for housing management in terms of
unprotected spaces being unlet.

Corporate / Citywide Implications:

5.7

6.1

6.2

6.3

The contract supports the council's need to supply parking for specific workers
and service providers through the council as well as in HRA owned car parks.
The contract will not be used to protect the public highway.

EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S):

Consideration of an in-house bid

The council does not have an in-house clamping team. This service has
always been contracted out to a professional clamping company. Although
there has not been full consideration of the legal, practical and financial issues
in setting up an in-house unit it is not felt such a team, dealing with council
owned car parks, would be the most cost effective way to provide clamping
protection where it is required. This is because the clamping contractors are
required to provide: a 24-hour service for 365 days of the year; vehicles;
towing facilities; signage; vehicle storage facilities; equipment; insurance; fuel;
personnel; management support; training. The overheads are likely to be far
higher than the income from this single contract. There is then a requirement
to attract an existing company that can add B&HCC sites to its current
operation and benefit from economies of scale which would not be available
to an in-house team.

To help illustrate this point the basic costs of leasing a van and providing a 24
hour service using scale 4 operatives are shown below. These costs do not
include the various other expenses set out above.

Cost of leasing a van £2,448
Costs for front line personnel £131,184*

* This includes the council’s responsibilities in terms of National Insurance
and pension contributions. It also takes account of enhancements set out in
the green book, which confirms:

O Time and a third is paid for working between 8.00 pm and 6.00 am

O Time and half is paid for working weekends and bank holidays

It is estimated that current contract covering Housing Revenue Account sites
will generate an income of £64,000 per year. There is some interest from

25



other departments to introduce clamping and there are opportunities to
maximise income. It is not known how many new sites would be included if a
corporate clamping scheme were introduced or how much income will be
generated. From the illustration above it is evident that the income would
need to be more than double for an in-house team to break even. There is
then an inherent risk that such a team could be a financial burden to both the
HRA and the General Fund, at least in the early years when the scheme is
expanding.

6.4 If the proposals contained in this report are agreed the council may wish to
revisit an in-house team towards the end of the contract. This would allow the
successful contractor to take on the risks of maximising income to the point
where an in-house team could take over and enjoy a profit.

7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS

7.1 To continue to protect car parking spaces that are let and managed by the
HRA on HRA land

7.2 To allow other department to benefit from a clamping service.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices:

There are none

Documents In Members’ Rooms

1.
2.

Background Documents

There are none

26



HOUSING CABINET Agenda Item 29
MEMBER MEETING Brighton & Hove City Council

Subject: Housing Strategy 2008-2013:
healthy homes, healthy lives, healthy city

Date of Meeting: 22 July 2008
REPORT OF: Director of Adult Social Care & Housing
Contact Officer: Name: Andy Staniford Tel: 29-3159

E-mail: andy.staniford@brighton-hove.gov.uk
Key Decision Yes Forward Plan Reference: 2160
Wards Affected: All

1.2

2.2

3.2

FOR GENERAL RELEASE

SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT:

This report is focussed on the development of the draft Housing Strategy and
the draft specialist housing strategies relating to Older People, the city’s BME
(Black and Minority Ethnic) communities and the city’s LGBT (Lesbian, Gay,
Bisexual and Trans) communities.

Development of these strategies began in 2007 to replace the previous
Strategy that was developed in 2001 and updated in 2004. This report is to
inform Housing Management Consultative Committee (HMCC) of the strategic
development process and invite their participation in upcoming consultation.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That the Housing Cabinet Member note the progress on the development of
the city-wide Housing Strategy 2008—-2013 and the consultation undertaken to
date.

That the Housing Cabinet Member note the engagement of the Housing
Management Consultative Committee and tenant representatives in detailed
consultation / review of the draft Housing Strategy, Older People’s Housing
Strategy, BME Housing Strategy and LGBT Housing Strategy.

RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

Our last housing strategy was developed in 2001 and updated in 2004. The
development of our new housing strategy began in 2007.

To ensure our services are working together as effectively as possible, the
development of the new housing strategy has been the springboard for a larger
strategy development and consultation review. This review is covering 8 key
strategy and service areas duringg2007 and 2008:



3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

Overarching Housing Strategy

« Housing Strategy 2008-2013: healthy homes, healthy lives, healthy city
« BME People’s Housing Strategy

« Older People’s Housing Strategy

o LGBT People’s Housing Strategy

Core Strategies
» Supporting People 5-year Strategy
e Homelessness Strategy

Homelessness Sub Strategies
» Single Homeless Strategy
e Temporary Accommodation Strategy

This report is focussed on the overarching Housing Strategy and the specialist
strategies relating to Older People, the city’s BME communities and the city’s
LGBT communities that are being developed in recognition of the particular
needs faced by these groups. These strategies are currently in development
and will be submitted for approval later in the current year.

The strategy development timetable was stretched to take advantage of new
government guidance that was expected in June 2008. Unfortunately, as a
result of the announcement in May that the housing reform green paper is due
to be published towards the end of 2008, it is now unknown if this guidance will
be produced. However, our planned timetable will now allow us to reflect in the
strategy relevant parts of the green paper and also the Community
Empowerment, Housing and Economic Regeneration Bill expected shortly.

The Homelessness Strategy, Supporting People Strategy Review and
Temporary Accommodation Strategy were approved at Housing Committee in
March 2008.

We recognise that housing plays an important part of all aspects of
people’s lives, particularly health and wellbeing. To support the new
strategy the Primary Care Trust is carrying out a Health Impact
Assessment on the city’s housing stock and housing needs. The results
of this assessment are helping us to ensure that our strategy and action
plans contribute to improving the health and wellbeing of local people.

Day to day management of the strategy development process has been
overseen by the Strategic Housing Partnership of the Local Strategic
Partnership which has been acting as the Project Board.

The Housing Strategy 2008-2013: healthy homes, healthy lives, healthy city
will be submitted for joint approval to both Council and the Local Strategic
Partnership and will become a key component of the Community Strategy.

28



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

CONSULTATION:

Our strategies have been developed in stages to maximise opportunities for
local people, advocacy groups, partner organisations, staff and other
stakeholders to engage in the process.

The first round of consultation was undertaken over 3 months in summer 2007.
The consultation was shaped around a Briefing Pack developed to highlight
key areas of housing need to provide stakeholders with relevant information to
help facilitate discussion. This pack was available on the council website and
throughout the city in libraries and other public places. It was also sent out to
many stakeholders, voluntary organisations and residents.

To support this consultation we also organised a 2 day Consultation Fair that
included a Saturday, officers went out into the community, attended social
functions, service user groups meetings and other events. Where possible we
also linked in with other research and consultation being carried out across the
city, such as the groundbreaking Count Me In Too! research looking at the
needs and aspirations of the city’s LGBT population.

In winter 2007/08 we published strategy frameworks outlining the proposed key
priorities and actions for the Housing Strategy, Older People’s Housing
Strategy, BME Housing Strategy and LGBT Housing Strategy. These priorities
and actions were developed from the Consultation Briefing Pack and findings
of the first round of consultation. Consultation on the strategy frameworks
together is being used to help develop the draft strategies and action plans.

To support the development of the specialist strategies, two Housing & Support
Working Groups have been set up:

o Older People’s Cross Sector Housing & Support Working Group
e LGBT Housing & Support Working Group

These groups are made up of representatives from a wide range of support
and advocacy groups, the community and voluntary sector, the Primary Care
Trust and the local authority. Whilst these groups have been instigated and
facilitated by the local authority, they are led by our stakeholders.

These groups have reviewed each stage of the strategy development process
and made many valuable contributions to our strategic priorities, action plan
and equality impact assessment. We hope that these groups will have an
ongoing monitoring and review remit once the strategies have been published.

We are working with the BME communities to explore the potential for a similar
group to be a critical champion of the BME Housing Strategy.

29



4.8

4.9

4.10

4.1

5.2

5.3

Sub groups of the Strategic Housing Partnership have been looking at the role
of housing co-ops and the issues around student housing. The findings of
these groups are helping to inform the draft strategies.

In tandem with the strategy development process, a number of Chairman’s
Focus Groups have been set up to consider key issues affecting the council’s
social housing stock and impacting on the lives of tenants. These groups are
looking at a number of issues such as sheltered housing, adaptations and
allocations which are also helping to inform the draft housing strategies.

The draft Housing Strategy, Older People’s Housing Strategy, BME Housing
Strategy and LGBT Housing Strategy are expected to be published in the
autumn for a final round of stakeholder consultation before being submitted for
approval early in the new year.

We do not want consultation to end with the publication of our strategies, but
would like it to be a part of an ongoing process, involving local people and
other stakeholders throughout the life of the strategies helping us to monitor its
implementation and review our services.

FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:
Financial Implications: [Mike Bentley, Accountant, 16 June 2008]

There are no direct financial implications arising from the recommendations
made in this report. However the final published strategies will need to have
close links with the various financial recovery plans in place/being developed
across Adult Social Care & Housing.

Legal Implications: [Celine Hayden, Lawyer, 16 June 2008]

Under the Local Government Act 2003 the Council is required to produce a
Housing Strategy (section 87—-88) setting out the objectives, targets and
policies on how the Council intends to manage and deliver its strategic housing
role. The Housing Strategy document should also provide an overreaching
framework against which the Council considers and formulates other policies
on more specific housing issues. The Council’s Housing Strategies are made
available and appraised by Government Officers for the region (section 65
Local Government and Housing Act 1989) to ensure they are fit for the purpose
i.e. that they are capable of delivering the housing function to a standard
demanded by Government. The Housing Strategy should also address energy
efficiency issues in the housing stock (Home Energy Conservation Act 1995).
Policies must be consistent with any national housing strategies at present.

Equalities Implications:

An equality impact assessment is being carried out on each strategy as it is
being developed, with the strategy containing a summary of the assessment.
Assessments will be completed during the last stage of consultation to inform
the final drafts of the strategies. Adgjtional Equality Impact Assessments will be



5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

required as the strategy action plans are implemented over the next few years.
Below is a summary of our approach to each of the 6 equality strands:

« Race: BME Housing Strategy in development.

« Disability: Strategy Statement on Physical Disabilities incorporated in
Housing Strategy and Older People’s Housing Strategy. Disability of all
kinds, including physical disability, learning disability and mental health
issues, are also a key feature of the Supporting People and Learning
Disability Housing Strategies.

« Gender and gender identity: Actions from the Gender Equality Scheme
have been fed into the strategic development process. Gender Identity is
also a key feature of the LGBT Housing Strategy.

e Age: Older People’s Housing Strategy in development. Youth
Homelessness Strategy developed in 2007. Supporting People Strategy
links to older people’s services, youth homelessness services, and action to
fund LGBT support worker for young people at risk.

« Religion / Belief: The BME Housing Strategy includes community safety
objectives which also cover religion and belief.

« Sexual Orientation: LGBT Housing Strategy in development.

Sustainability Implications:

Housing is one of the 12 key objectives of the council’s Sustainability Strategy
which aims to ensure that everyone has access to decent, affordable
housing that meets their needs. The Housing Strategy 2008-2013 and
related specialist strategies support this aim.

Crime & Disorder Implications:

Ensuring appropriate housing and support is essential in helping to reduce
antisocial behaviour and other crime and also to support the victims of crime.
Specific actions within the LGBT and BME housing strategies recognise hate
crime and aim to support victims and help develop safer communities.

Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:

The current economic climate brings with it the risks of increased levels of
home repossessions, increased numbers of empty homes, increased
overcrowding, reduced access to equity funding for maintenance and
improvements and reduced levels of house building. This could increase
pressures relating to homelessness, housing support and community cohesion.
A robust housing strategy is essential to help mitigate these risks and resultant
budgetary pressures.

Corporate / Citywide Implications:

Housing is a fundamental aspect of people’s wellbeing affecting the daily lives
of 250,000 residents in Brighton & Hove. Poor or inappropriate housing has a
direct impact on the ability of residents to maintain their independence — this

has implications for social care, egl‘Jcation and the health. 22,000 households



in the city have someone with a support need and vulnerability affects 1 in 5
households. Housing also has a significant impact on the economy, with the
housing stock currently valued at approximately £26bn. Homes worth more
than £1bn are sold every year with around a further £1bn being spent on
maintenance, rents, mortgages and other associated housing costs. Our
housing aims support the priorities and aims of the 2020 Community Strategy.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices
1. None

Documents In Members’ Rooms

1. None

Background Documents:
All available at: http://www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/index.cfm?request=c1188834

1. Draft Housing Strategy Framework, December 2007

2. Draft Older People’s Housing Strategy Framework, December 2007
3. Draft BME People’s Housing Strategy Framework, December 2007

4. Draft LGBT People’s Housing Strategy Framework, December 2007
5. Housing Strategy 2008: Consultation Briefing Pack, May 2007

32



HOUSING CABINET Agenda ltem 30
MEMBER MEETING Brighton & Hove City Counil

Subject: Housing Management Performance Report
Date of Meeting: 22 July 2008

Report of: Director of Adult Social Care & Housing
Contact Officer: Name: John Austin Locke Tel: 29-1008

E-mail: John.austin-locke@brighton-hove.gov.uk
Key Decision: No
Wards Affected: All

FOR GENERAL RELEASE

1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT:

1.1 This report provides analysis of the performance of the Housing Management
Division during 2007/08 and on general policy initiatives underway to improve
performance within Housing Management.

2 RECOMMENDATIONS:

2.1 That the Housing Cabinet Member Meeting note the contents of this report.
3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

3.1 There follows a series of reports on specific areas of performance.

3.1.1 Rent Collection and Current Arrears

3.1.2 This section of the report provides information pertaining to four statutory
performance indicators relating to the collection of Housing Revenue Account rent.
The four indicators are known as BVPI66a, BVPI66b, BVPI66¢c and BVPI66d
respectively and concern:

« The proportion of rent collected during the year that was actually due (or
charged) during the year.

« The percentage of tenants with more than 7weeks rent arrears

e The percentage of tenants in arrears who have had a Notice of Seeking
Possession Served on them during the year

e The percentage of tenants who have been evicted as a result of rent arrears

33



3.1.3

3.1.4

3.1.5

3.1.6

3.1.7

BVPI 66a. Proportion of rent arrears collected

BVPI 66a

Brighton 97.75% (07/08)
All England — Top Quartile* 98.57%

All England — Bottom Quartile 97.07%

All England — Average 97.66%
Unitaries — Top Quartile 98.56%
Unitaries — Bottom Quartile 96.88%
Unitaries — Average 97.74%

* N.B The benchmarking information is taken from national reported figures from 2006/07.
Benchmarking information for 2007/08 is not published by the Audit Commission until autumn
2008.

This performance indicator relates to the proportion of rent collected as a
percentage of the total rent due during the year. It does not take account of any
cash collected to clear arrears from previous arrears or pre-payments taken to
cover rent due in future years. This means that it is not possible for the result
to exceed 100%.

The indicator result includes former tenancy arrears when a tenant moves during
the year from one Housing Revenue Account property to another.

There are a number of examples where a tenant in arrears may transfer to another
property. These include tenants who are relocated due to serious harassment

or who are moved due to exceptional over-riding medical need. There are also
circumstances where a new tenancy is granted at the same address, for example
where a tenant succeeds the tenancy from a spouse or partner.

The results shown are the final results for 2007/08.

The graphs on pages 3-10 of the appendix show performance for the year. The
monthly data for 2006/07 and 2007/08 is also shown as a comparator.

34



Neighbourhood Performance Performance Difference Between 2006/07
2006/07 2007/08 and 2007/08

Brighton East 95.44% 97.07% +1.63%

Central 97.30% 98.21% +0.91%

North & East 97.27% 98.08% +0.81%

West 96.19% 98.09% +1.9%

Temporary 93.06% 93.8008% +0.74%

Accommodation

Citywide 96.44% 97.75% +1.31%

« The table below shows what the percentages translate to in financial terms.
Based on current performance it is forecast that the council will collect £36.18
million of the total collectable rent during the year that became due during the

year.

Neighbourhood Annual Rent Performance How much of the rent
Charged to 2007/08 charged for the year that we
Tenants (£) collected (£)

Brighton East 12,536,060 97.08% 12,170,007

Central 7,554,072 98.21% 7,418,854

North & East 11,031,008 98.08% 10,819,213

West 7,487,056 98.09% 7,344,053

Temporary 263,308 93.80% 245,087

Accommodation

Totals 38,871,504 97.75% 37,997,214

3.1.8 The figures above relate to rent collected from charges made through the year. It

does not include any rent collected from arrears in previous years. The total
amount collected was £39,349,984, which relates to an arrears reduction of
£478,480 during 2007/08. Over the year the net total current tenant arrears has
dropped from £1,384,155 to £905,675.

3.1.9. The housing Income Management Team has worked hard to achieve this result
and have exceeded their target of 97.7%. All neighbourhood areas have improved
on last years result demonstrating that after a period of settling into the role and
resolving many long standing complex cases the team are obtaining the results
that have been expected by tenants, leaseholders and members.

3.1.10 Although the performance for temporary accommodation is lower than other areas
the significance of this is far less with arrears standing at £17,711 at year end. It
also needs to be remembered that temporary accommodation staff have a high

35



turnover of residents and often only a very short period of time in which to deal
with benefit claims and resolve arrears issues.

BVPI 66b. % of tenants with more than seven weeks arrears

BVPI 66b

Brighton 7.85 (07/08)
All England — Top Quartile* 3.89%

All England — Bottom Quartile 7.69%

All England — Average 6.35%
Unitaries — Top Quartile 4.64%
Unitaries — Bottom Quartile 8.40%
Unitaries — Average 6.94%

* N.B The benchmarking information is taken from national reported figures from 2006/07.
Benchmarking information for 2007/08 is not published by the Audit Commission until autumn
2008.

3.1.11 This indicator shows the percentage of tenants with more than seven weeks’
arrears. The indicator is an average over the year rather than a snap shot at
anyone time i.e. the end of a month or quarter. This means that the figures shown
are cumulative and we take weekly snapshots to calculate average to date.

3.1.12 For 2007/08 we have set a target of no more than 7.60% of tenants having more
than seven weeks’ arrears. In setting the target we have factored in the number
of new tenancies each year, approximately 800, and the percentage of tenants
who are in receipt of full and partial Housing Benefit. This is because a
proportion of this debt will be as a result of Housing Benefit processing times
and delays caused by some tenants not providing relevant information to allow
their claim to be processed quickly.

3.1.13 At the year end performance stood at 7.85%, or an average of 954 debtors with
arrears of more than 7 weeks.

3.1.14 Although it is disappointing the team were just off target members of this
committee are asked to note that over the course of the year the number of
debtors with more than seven weeks rent arrears dropped from 1068 to 852. This
equates to a drop of 216 cases.

36



BVPI 66¢c. Tenants who have received a NOSP for rent arrears.

BVPI 66¢

Brighton 27.23% (07/08)
All England — Top Quartile* 16.55%

All England — Bottom Quartile 32.99%

All England — Average 26.46%
Unitaries — Top Quartile 17.01%
Unitaries — Bottom Quartile 33.35%
Unitaries — Average 25.36%

* N.B The benchmarking information is taken from national reported figures from 2006/07.
Benchmarking information for 2007/08 is not published by the Audit Commission until autumn
2008.

3.1.15 This indicator measures the percentage of local authority tenants who have had a
Notice of Seeking Possession (NOSP) served on them for rent arrears. A NOSP is
the first stage in legal action against tenants and gives notice that unless a
tenant takes steps to address their arrears or enter into an agreement with the
council to repay the debt then the council may proceed to court action. A NOSP
will not be served without attempts to speak with the customer. These efforts will
then continue after the NOSP has been served and through all stages until the
case reaches court, if indeed it does go that far. The government calls for the
indicator to be calculated as a percentage of the average number of tenants in
arrears throughout the year.

3.1.16 The government is very clear that local authorities must adopt a preventative
approach to rent arrears. The aim of this indicator is to ensure local authorities
are only using legal action and threats of legal action as a last resort. The
government expect local authorities to review policies and procedures to ensure
that preventative measures are in place so that Notices of Seeking Possession are
kept to a minimum.

3.1.17 Although the government’s intentions here are clear, many landlords see the
serving of a NOSP as an effective tool to collecting rent arrears, as it gives an
obvious message to debtors that we are serious about collecting debts. It does not
follow that the serving of a NOSP will lead to court action. Within a well thought
out and proactive rent arrears procedure the serving of a NOSP can actually
reduce the number of tenants taken to court.

3.1.18 Brighton and Hove’s arrears procedures are well laid out, and do not lead officers
into inappropriate court action. It does not therefore seem appropriate or
desirable to artificially influence this indicator by not serving NOSPs,
potentially at the expense of the overall collection rate. It is instead anticipated
that our proactive policy of early intervention/prevention work will stop debts
escalating to the 6-7 week point at when a NOSP is usually served.

37



Part of the project plan for the next 6 months is to review our arrears processes
with a view to further streamlining the process. This will include looking a the time
we take to serve a NOSP. At present the protocol prior to serving a NOSP is as
follows:

Week 2 First Arrears letter
Week 4 Second Arrears letter
Week 5 NOSP warning letter
Week 6/7 NOSP served

The tenant is contacted by phone throughout this process, and will not serve a
NOSP without attempting a home visit, even if that only results in us leaving a
calling card.

3.1.19 As the year progresses, an increasing number of NOSPs will be served although

consideration is always given to individual cases. To support this sensitive

but legally rigorous approach we have set an annual target that at the end of the
year there should be no more than 15% of tenants who are in arrears with a
Notice of Seeking Possession. At the end of 2007/08 the performance was
27.23% against a target of 15%.

3.1.20 This is a new performance indicator and at the time of writing benchmarking

information is only available for 2006/07. Extrapolating that data we estimate that
this result would place Brighton & Hove in the lower median quartile.

3.1.21Brighton & Hove’s target was set taking into account that we will normally serve a

notice where arrears are at the 6 — 7 week level. This gives a very clear message
to a tenant who has not engaged that we are serious about debt collection. It also
protects the council's interests as we cannot proceed to court, (if we deem that
necessary) until four weeks after a NOSP has been served. The target has also
been set based on the figures for BVPI66b, which measures those with more than
7 weeks rent arrears. The objective is to do well at BVPI66a whilst keeping
BVPI66¢c as low as possible.

3.1.22 ltis disappointing that we are well outside our target, however, members of the

committee are asked to recognise the achievement for BVPI66a, which is the
actual income that feeds Into the Housing Revenue Account. It is not considered
sensible, given our collection rate to keep BVPI66c¢ artificially low (i.e. by not
serving NOSPs) at the expense of BVPI66a.

38



BVPI 66d. Tenants evicted as a result of rent arrears

BVPI 66d

Brighton 0.17% (07/08)
All England — Top Quartile* 0.20%

All England — Bottom Quartile 0.49%

All England — Average 0.45%
Unitaries — Top Quartile 0.23%
Unitaries — Bottom Quartile 0.5%
Unitaries — Average 0.39%

* N.B The benchmarking information is taken from national reported figures from 2006/07.
Benchmarking information for 2007/08 is not published by the Audit Commission until autumn
2008.

3.1.23 This indicator measures the percentage of all tenants evicted as a result of rent
arrears. The denominator in this calculation looks at the number of tenancies at
the end of each quarter.

3.1.24 1t has been agreed that we do not wish to evict more than 35 households as a
result of rent arrears. During 2007/08 Brighton & Hove Council evicted 23
households for rent arrears.

3.2 Empty Property Turnaround Time

3.2.1 This section of the report provides performance information for the full financial
year 2007/08, for BV212, the Best Value Performance Indicator for the letting
of empty homes.

BV212 Average time taken to re-let local authority housing
Brighton 31 (07/08)

All England — Top Quartile* 26

All England — Bottom Quartile 46

All England — Average 39

Unitaries — Top Quartile 39

Unitaries — Bottom Quartile 45

Unitaries — Average 28

* N.B The benchmarking information is taken from national reported figures from 2006/07.
Benchmarking information for 2007/08 is not published by the Audit Commission until autumn
2008.

3.2.2 The full year turnaround time average for 2007/8 was 31 days, falling very
slightly short of the annual target of 30 days, and an improvement on the

39



previous years average of 35 days. Please see Table 1. The team and repairs
partnering contractors have been successful in recovering from high
turnaround figures of 49 days in May last year to around 24 days on average
for the last quarter of the year.

BV212 Average turnaround time in days -2007/8

2007/8 Last Year
Target — 30 Year Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr3 |Qtr4 end
days total
Average

turnaround 35 45 32 25 24 31
time

:'aertgse‘;‘"th'“ 55% | 30% | 56% | 74% | 74% | 60%

3.2.3 The table below demonstrates the difficulties experienced within the contract
during the first few months of the last financial year, as previously reported
to Housing Management Sub Committee in September 2007.

BV212 Average turnaround time in days -2007/8

'(I;z;gset e Apr |May (Jun |Jul | Aug |Sep | Oct | Nov | Dec | Jan | Feb | Mar tYortzln &
General needs housing

General 46 | 46 | 44 | 35 | 31 | 23 | 25 | 25 | 22 | 24 | 22 | 21 30
needs

Total let 51 | 49 | 45 | 63 | 46 | 49 | 54 | 61 | 62 | 57 | 53 | 67 | 657
:ﬁrgz: in 29% | 22% | 38% | 46% | 57% | 76% | 72% | 74% | 79% | 61% | 85% | 82% | 62%

Sheltered housing
Sheltered 46 | 57 | 47 | 57 | 32 | 39 | 37 | 32 | 24 | 37 | 37 | 28 39
Total let 15 13| 6 | 11| 11| 6 | 12|12 14| 7 |10] 9 126
Letintarget | 26% | 31% | 33% | 9% | 64% | 67% | 34% | 58% | 86% | 57% | 50% | 67% | 50%
All properties

All 46 | 49 | 44 | 38 | 31 | 25 | 27 | 26 | 22 | 26 | 24 | 22 31
Total let 66 | 62 | 51 | 74 | 57 | 55 | 66 | 73 | 76 | 64 | 63 | 76 | 782
Letintarget | 26% | 24% | 37% | 41% | 58% | 75% | 71% | 71% | 80% | 61% | 79% | 80% | 60%

3.2.4 The excellent focus on improving performance over the last half year has enabled
us to rank 21st place out of the 61 housing organisations in the South East

40




Benchmark Club, and rank first place of 12 Major Cities Benchmark Club, in the
last quarter of the year.

Table 3 below compares quarterly BV212 and shows the difference in sheltered
properties with and without shared facilities. There remains a general pattern of
sheltered properties of all types taking longer to let than general needs housing, as
well as sheltered properties with shared facilities generally exceeding the average
time for sheltered homes with their own facilities. There have been a few
difficulties in letting some sheltered properties, even with their own facilities, in our
less desirable blocks and those with two bedrooms.

BV212 figures with detailed sheltered accommodation comparison

2007/8 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Year end
Target — 30 Days total
General needs 45 30 24 22 30
Sheltered own facilities 45 44 29 35 37
Sheliered shared 72 39 49 25 49
Total sheltered 48 43 30 34 39
All properties 45 32 25 24 31
Let in target 30% 56% 74% 74% 60%

3.2.5 Number of empty properties

The number of empty council properties stood at 122 at the beginning of this
financial year. This represents only 0.97% of the councils stock.

Empty properties at the beginning of the year

Time Number % of stock
April 2004 232 1.85%
April 2005 257 1.87%
April 2006 112 0.89%
April 2007 123 0.98%
April 2008 122 0.97%

41



3.2.6 Refusal of properties by housing applicants

We record detailed information on reasons properties are refused by applicants.
These assist in a continuous review that aims to supply the most appropriate
information to applicants.

In 2007/08, not liking the area is the principle reason given for refusing the offer of
a property. Evidence suggests that a number of applicants do not look around an
area until the day of the viewing. There is currently no penalty for applicants
making multiple refusals.

It also remains of concern that such a high proportion of applicants make no
response to offers. It appears that a proportion of these customers change their
mind about wanting to move, but do not notify us of this change.

The other top reasons for refusal are set out in the chart below.

Top reasons for refusal during the year

As a percent of

2006/7 | Reason given by applicant all refusals

Applicant has changed area of choice,

o
subsequent to offer being made 15%

No response is received from applicant,
2 subsequent to offer, despite efforts to make 14%
contact by staff

Subsequent to offer being made, applicant

o
3 declares that they want a different property 13%
4 After viewing the property, applicant declares 10%
it to be unsuitable for their purposes °
After viewing the property, the applicant 8%
5 - )
declares it to be too small for purpose
3.3 Repairs Update

3.2.1 The responsive repairs partnering contracts with Kier and Mears have now been in
place for just over a year. Performance has greatly improved over the last six
months following the mobilisation of the contract.

3.3.2 The table below shows the level of responsive repairs carried out in each quarter of
last year and the percentage of repairs that were completed within the target time.

42



Responsive Repairs

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
Apr — Jun 07 July - Sep 07 | Oct - Dec 07 | Jan - Mar 08
Emergency Repairs 82.97 % 88.62% 97.87% 97.65%
Completed in time
No of Emergency Repairs 1427 1230 1846 2339
completed
Urgent Repairs Completed in | 85.40% 87.89% 90.97% 94.02%
time
No of Urgent Repairs 2233 2114 1572 1756
completed
Routine Repairs Completed | 86.14% 87.49% 90.75% 94.88%
within target time
No of Routine Repairs 1731 2143 3104 4667

completed

3.3.3

3.34

3.35

3.3.6

3.3.7

The highest performing authorities are currently achieving 98.16% for
emergency repairs completed in time, we finished the year slightly below that
but in a good position to achieve that level in 2008/2009.

For urgent repairs completed in time highest performing cities are achieving
97%, we finished the year at 94%.

The highest performing authorities achieved above 93.70% for routine
repairs completed in time, our responsive repairs contract is currently
performing above that at 94.88%.

This benchmarking information is from the Major Cities group as at beginning

of May 2008.

Other performance indicators for the responsive repairs contract are summarised

in the table below and are from February 2008, which is the latest complete
information available for these indicators.

43




Responsive Repairs

Target February 2008

1 Resident Satisfaction with 95% 98.67%
Responsive Repair Service

2 Orders Repaired in First Visit 85% 91.78%

3 Orders Passing Quality 95% 96.04%
Inspection

4 Reportable Health & Safety 0 0
Incidents

5 Emergency and Urgent Repairs | 98.5% 93.51%
Completed within target time*

6 No of Days to Complete Routine | 14 days 14 days
Repairs*

*Target times as follows:

e Emergency repairs: 24 Hours

e Urgent repairs: 3 working days

¢ Routine repairs: 20 working days

3.3.8 All of the indicators reported for February have exceeded the set targets except for
indicator 5 measuring the emergency and urgent repairs completed in time. Work
is being undertaken by the partnership to address this area of performance, this
includes the introduction of simplified emergency schedule of rates and early
indications are that April has delivered a 2% improvement on the February figure.

3.3.9 In all areas the performance has improved over the course of the first year of the
responsive repairs contract, and in a number of important areas Brighton & Hove
City Council has exceeded top quartile performance. The partnership sees this
level of performance as a good platform to achieve top quartile over the coming
months.

3.3.10 From a slow start mobilising the new contract, it became evident quickly that poor
performance completing repairs within their target time had a significant impact on
the customer. We have worked with our partners on a regular basis to reduce the
level of jobs overdue their target date, from a peak of 2800 to 453 by the year end.
There is still a lot of hard work to do but our target is to reduce the level to below
200 by the end of the summer

3.3.11 Alongside the operational management of the Responsive Maintenance
contract, The Repairs and Maintenance team are working to add value to the
contract and improve the council’s overall performance to three star rating.

44



3.4

3.4.1

Sickness Absence

The table below sets out the sickness absence across the council in the second

half of the year.

Directorate (BV12)

Q3

Average Days
Lost

Q4

Average Days
Lost

2007-2008

Average Days
Lost

Adult Social Care & Housing 4.25 4.52 16.54
Children & Young Peoples' Trust 2.07 2.31 7.56
Cultural Services 2.88 2.81 10.85
EB4U 5.52 0.92 13.23
Environment 2.33 2.46 10.07
Finance & Resources 275 3.14 10.99
Strategy & Governance 2.1 2.19 7.79

All Council 2.63 2.84 10.12
Division Q3 Q4 2007-2008

Average Days
Lost

Average Days
Lost

Average Days
Lost

Adult Services 4.60 4.80 17.48
Community Care (S75) 212 3.03 9.22
Housing Management 5.04 4.45 19.32
Housing Strategy 5.05 6.03 18.09
Integrated Learning Disability 3.27 3.57 14.16
Adult Social Care and Housing Total | 4.25 4.52 16.54
BV12 2006/7

Brighton 10.78

All England — Top Quartile 8.09

All England — Bottom Quartile 10.73

All England — Average 9.44

Unitaries — Top Quartile 8.70

Unitaries — Bottom Quartile 10.78

Unitaries — Average 9.6

45




3.4.2

3.5

Initiatives are currently underway by Housing Management with the aim of
improving attendance. The Housing Management division has undertaken a
corporate pilot for a Stress Risk Assessment initiative. Human Resources are
also assisting Housing Management Managers by improving the methodology
by which absentees have their return to work interviews conducted.

Gas Servicing

The graph below shows the progress of Brighton & Hove City Council, Mears
and PH Jones in servicing gas installations. The end of year (March) figure was
99.06%, the second highest achieved in the year.

% of Properties with a Current Gas Service

100%
A
98%
97%
Apr | May| &in | il | Aug| Sep | Oct | Nov| Dec| n | Feb | Mar
o7 | 07 | O7 | 07 | O7 | O7 | O7 O7 | O7 | 08 08 | 08
—e—Combined 98.12 98.03 98.39 99.00 99.24,99.03| 98.97 98.79 98.80 98.58 98.69 99.06

3.5.1

3.5.2

The number of Council properties with a valid gas safety certificate has

shown a year on year improvement. The March 2008 figure of 99.06%

shows nearly a 1% increase on the previous year and is only 0.18% below the
traditionally high August figure. Indications show that the improvement should
continue this year. The partners continue to perform well and have

consistently met their Key Performance Indicators. In a drive for continuous
improvement and in consultation with the partnering contractors, the majority of
KPI’s have been raised for 2008/2009.

Investment in gas heating continues and during the year 2007-08 the
partners replaced 698 gas boilers and installed 40 new systems. This
investment will reduce ongoing service and repair costs, improve overall
energy efficiency, and importantly, reduce tenant’s fuel bills. Investment will

46



3.5.3

3.54

3.5.5

3.6

3.6.1

continue during the new financial year with greater emphasis on renewing
older and less efficient boilers.

In March 2008 CORGI was invited to carry out a management audit on the
Planned Maintenance and Engineer Section. The audit was carried out in
conjunction with similar scrutiny of the partnering contractors, also by CORGI.
The auditor reported:

“The organisation has a very effective access procedure and excellent service
compliance rate of 98.75% on the day of the audit. These are very good results
if benchmarked against similar social landlords where this exercise has been
undertaken. Within the organisation there are dedicated staff who give gas
safety issues a high priority and demonstrate high standards in the delivery of
service to the tenants”

The audit also highlighted several areas where improvement could be
achieved, including:

1. a more robust procedure in reporting gas leaks.

2. the gas administration staff to have a greater understanding of gas issues

3. the procedure for maintaining gas safety in empty properties (in particular
monitoring of gas contractors where the partnering contractor is not
involved).

An action plan is in place to ensure improvement in all these areas.

Housing officer involvement in the gas safety process has been particularly
effective. Further improvement is being implemented to achieve even better
access rates to those properties that are difficult to reach. Targets have been
agreed for processing of referred no-access cases:

e 50-60% properties to be completed within 30 days of referral
e 85%- 90% to be completed within 90 days of referral

In order to assist in improving access rates, a trial is being undertaken for
the fixing of awareness raising notices over tenants’ door locks, and it is
proposed that new boiler controls that incorporate a service reminder alarm
should be fitted to properties where access has been difficult.

Correspondence performance in answering complaints

Complaints about Housing Management are dealt with under the Corporate
Complaints procedure. Managers form the service investigate and reply to
Stage One complaints. Standards and Complaints officers carry out Stage Two
Investigations. Customers may then refer to the Local Government
Ombudsman if they remain dissatisfied.

47



3.6.2 Stage One Complaints; Trends, Themes, Issues

3.6.3  Chart 1 shows the trend for Housing Management complaints for April 2007 to
March 2008. Complaints about the whole department have remained static
over that period. Repairs and Maintenance shows a significant reduction over
the year. For Housing Estate Management there has been a gradual increase
in levels of complaint.

Chart 1

Housing Management Complaint Trends April
2007 - March 2008

@ Hsg Mng
B Rep Mnt
B Est Mngmnt

Number of Complaints

2007/08

3.6.4  The table below, gives information about complaint numbers at all stages of the
complaints process.

3.6.5  There have been noticeable levels of complaint about Garages & Car Parks
(22). The increase has been as a result of customers being made aware that
they can use the complaint process to appeal decision to clamp vehicles.
Those complaints have resulted in no re-imbursements or findings against the
clamping company.

48



Volume of complaints by service area.

Housing
Management
2007/08

Q1

Q2

Q3

Q4

S1 S2 LGO

S1

S2

LGO

S1

S2

LGO

S2

LGO

Repairs &
Maintenance

50 4 2

50

Housing/Estate
Management

29

ASB

Garages/carparks

RTB/Leasehold

Debt Recovery

-~ O |N|O

New Tenancies

W OO N

Sheltered Housing

[eRNelNeNNeRNO NN

[eBNeoRNoNNoNNoNNe)

[eNNeoRNeolNoNNeNNol

1
3
3
0
1
1

[eRNelNeNNoRE VRN

OO | O |N |~ |O

Total

0
2 0
82 8 8

6

4

88

6

6

©O O O | OO | N|~

OO OO0l OO | O

3.6.6

Complaints relating to repairs and maintenance

Repairs and Maintenance Issues

2007/08

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
Brickwork 3 0 1
Carpentry 3 2 1 6
Condensation Damp 3 4 4
Delay Carrying Out Repair 37 28 26 19
Electrical 4 4 4 3
Failure to Identify Problem 5 0 4 5
Heating 3 0 8 3
M&E (Lifts etc) 0 0 1 0
Missed Appointment 2 1 1 4
Plumbing 8 43 36 17
Refusal to repair 3 1 2 0
Roofing 1 2 2 0
Scaffolding 3 1 2 1
Staff Attitude 6 7 2 6
Total 81 100 93 69

49

Table 5, shows improvements in plumbing services and reduced delays in
carrying out repairs have contributed to falling levels of complaints about
Repairs and Maintenance.




3.6.7 Correspondence Performance

3.6.8 Correspondence performance is a useful indication of how much priority is
placed on dealing with customer dissatisfaction with services.
3.6.9 Chart 2 shows the average response times throughout the year. The
Council’s standard is to reply to complaints within 10 working days.
o Average reply times for the whole department improved until quarter 3
and increased slightly in quarter 4 to 8.3 days.
« Average reply times for Estate Management have increased over the
year and reached 10.3 days in quarter 4.
o Average reply times for Repairs and Maintenance improved significantly
in quarter 3 to 7.7 days but increased in quarter 4 to 9.4 days.
Chart 2
Average Reply Times 2007/08
18 16.1
4
<
T
(=]
'.§ EHsg Mng
g W Est Mngmnt
£ Il Rep Mnt
>
Q.
(7]
12
2007/08

50



3.6.11 The small number of complaints that are taking an excessively long time to
reply to are causing the average reply times to be unnecessarily high.

Chart 3

Proportion of people receiving replies within 10
working days, Stage One 2007/08

100
90 -
80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10

EHsg Mng
WEst Mngmnt
W Rep Mnt

% replies

2007/08

The second measure of significance is the proportion of people who receive a
response within 10 working days. The chart shows that:
e For the whole department, replies sent within 10 working days increased
from 73% to 84%.
« For Estate Management the proportion of replies fell from 89% to 62% in
quarter three but increased to 78% in quarter 4.

« For Repairs and Maintenance replies within 10 working days have
increased from 60% in quarter 2 to 84% in quarter 4

3.6.13 Stage Two Complaints

3.6.14 The proportion of Repairs and Maintenance complaints referred to Stage
Two over the year was 7%. For the whole council 8% of cases were
referred. There were no specific recurring themes at this stage.

3.6.15 For Estate Management 10% of complaints were referred to Stage Two. Of
the ten cases referred for investigation four related to dissatisfaction with
the way neighbour nuisance was being dealt with.

e« Two cases were in part upheld

o One case was not investigated. The complainant had a restraining order
against him and was making counter allegations

e The fourth case has not yet been concluded

51



3.6.16 Ombudsman Complaints

3.6.17

3.6.18

3.6.19

3.6.20

3.7

3.7.1

There have been no findings of maladministration against Housing
Management.

Complaints about Repairs and Maintenance resulted in three Local

Settlements.

e In one case the Ombudsman recommended that R&M Stage One
response letters should be reviewed to ensure complainants are
informed of how to access Stage Two of the complaint process.

o Two cases resulted in recommendations of payments totalling £250.
Each complaint related to delay in carrying out repairs.

One complaint about Housing Management resulted in a Local Settlement
by way of an apology and payment of £200 for the delay in dealing with
noise nuisance caused by an ineffective door closure.

There were four complaints to the Ombudsman about Garages and Car
Parking. One case resulted in a Local Settlement in which the Ombudsman
considered the Council had taken reasonable action to deal with obstruction
of the complainant’s garage.

Estates Service

Following the recommendations of the Chairman’s Focus Group on the
Estates Service, work is ongoing to review the way that the cleaning of
common parts is organised and monitored. Residents on the focus
group said they wanted to see more accountability for cleaning and
better performance monitoring. To meet this aim, dedicated cleaners
for groups of high rise buildings are being trialled. This is getting
positive feedback from residents. A report providing a detailed update
on this work will be brought to the next meeting of this committee.

52



3.7.2 The Graffiti and Bulk Refuse removal teams continue to provide a
responsive service with all urgent jobs being carried out within the set
response time of one working day. Tables showing the number of jobs
and their performance record are set out below.

Estate Services Monitoring Figures

Bulk Waste Removal November 07-March 08

Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
Urgent jobs 0 2 4 6 8
Routine jobs 197 149 193 235 225
Total 197 151 197 241 233
Target met for urgent jobs N/A 100% 100% 100% 100%
Target met for routine jobs 99% 96% 99% 100% 97%

Target - urgent jobs removal in 1 working day of report
Target - routine jobs removal within 7 working days of report

Estate Services Monitoring Figures

Graffiti Removal November 07-March 08

Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
Urgent jobs 5 3 14 0 0
Routine jobs 65 38 68 28 70
Total 70 41 82 28 70
Target met for urgent jobs 100% 100% 100% 0% N/A 0% N/A
Target met for routine jobs 82% 95% 97% 100% 97%

Target - urgent jobs removal in 1 working day of report
Target - routine jobs removal within 7 working days of report

53



4.

4.1

5.1

CONSULTATION

The Performance report will be presented to customers at the next round of
Housing Management Area Panels.

FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:

Financial information on performance is included in the main body of the
report.

Most performance measures discussed in this report have financial
implications. For example, any improvement in turnaround times or reductions
in empty property numbers increases the amount of rent collected.
Improvements in performance will, in general, lead to more resources being
available for tenants services in the future.

Legal Implications:

There are none.

Lawyer consulted: Deborah Jones Date: 28 May 2008

Equalities Implications:

5.3

There are no direct Equalities Implications arising from this report

Sustainability Implications:

5.2

There are no direct sustainability implications arising from this report

Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:

5.5

There are no direct risk and opportunity management implications arising
from this report

Corporate / Citywide Implications:

5.7

6.1

There are no direct Corporate or Citywide implications arising from this
report.

EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S):

Alternative options are integral to the processes of performance
improvement discussed in this report.

54



7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS
7.1 These are contained within the body of the report.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices:
1. None

Documents in Members’ Rooms
1. None

Background Documents
1. None

55



56



S13o1

800¢ aunr

57

Q0//002 40} sueyo - Joday aduewload
Juswabeuel\ buisnoH

9oUBUIAAON) R ABajesys Bunioday ssuewaopad




crjoc

'80/L00¢
JO yjuow yoea Buunp aosuewsopad moys sieq an|q ay} pue ‘20/900z 40 Jeah jeloueuly ayy bulinp asuewlopuad Ajyjuow moys sieq mojjeh syl

‘wes) aouewlopad 8)eiodliod ay) pue siebeuew adIAles Usamiad Jusluaaibe ul 18s s [9A8] SIy| ‘Juswaroidwi noge Buliq 0}
usye) 8g 0} SPasau UoIo. suesw pue 1abie) wod) uoneleA Jueslyiubis e syussaidal yoiym ‘eouewlopad Jo |9A8] ,plOYSaly), B Sejousp aul| pal ay |

‘'slequiaw pa)od|d pue SJ0)oalIp ‘siebeuew adIAI8S UsaM)aq Juswaalbe ul Jeak yoes 18s s yolym ‘anaiyoe o} wie am jabie} ay)
sjuasaldal sydelb ay) uo aul usalb ay] BAoqge pa)sl| si0jedlpul 8y} Jsuiebe aouewuopad s,|1ounod ayy Aejdsip GL-¢ sebed uo umoys sydeub ay |

sydeus) o} Aoy

.V—‘ ........................................................................................... me_“_. ”_.mm.hm“_. C_F_”_._>> Umu_.m_QC(_OO WQO—. _m>OE®h mw:.._.m.h V__—JQ h.o Axu
m”—\ ................................................................................................... me_“— ”_.mm._m“_. C_F._”_._>> U@HO_QEOO WQO— _m>OE®._ _”_._u_u_.m._@ u_.o AXU
Nr ........................................................................................ Aw_u_>>>“—_ov QU—NOE._“CGO \ﬁ@u—mw WNO Juanno e £“—_>> wm_tGQO._Q u—O AXV
—\—\ ......................................................................................... @C_wJOr_ >”_._._O£”_.3® _NOO_ ”_.®_®L_ O”_. W>NU C_ ®E_“— ®@®L®>< - N—\N >®
Q “rTTT T POAISS CO_wwOwwOQ @C_v_mww S901]0U peY SABY OYM SJealle Ul Sjueusd) Jo % - 999 A4
G T siealie Jual SYoaM / UBY} 8I10W YHIM SJUBUS] JO % - 499 AL
w .................................................................................... ACO_”—NUOEEOOOW \Cm._OQE@“— U@uO@:OO Jual u—O CO_tOQO._ﬂ_ - ®©© >m
IR e e LR e L LR L LR CIERLIERCIERCLES Cwmm po109||02 Jual JO CO_tOQO._n_ - 899 A9
o R LU LR LRI A_NH—CGO P8]08||02 Judl JO CO_tOQOgn_ - e99 A9

m ...................................................................................................................... A“_.ww>> Umu_.om__oo HC@L h.o Co_togo.h& _ mom >m

.v ..................................................................................................................... Actoz Uwu_.om__oo HC@L h.O Co_toao.h& - mow >m
MU ................................................................................................................. A@U_\(/\AH._O Umu_.om__oo HC@L h.o Co_togo.h& _ m©© >m

N N N N N’ N

SjuajuUo09n



Srjo¢

*Jojeoipul
siy} 1suiebe souewloyled 0) BuNGLIUOD HJOM UO UOHBWLIOUI JoyuN) 10} Lodal 8a)iwwoo-gns juswabeue|y BuisNoH 8y} JO UONOSS ,SJeally pue UoIos|[0)) JUsy, 8y} 983

‘sJossedssal) pa)elo|o) Joj Ssiealie Jual sapnjoxa }nsal yuow jeulj 8y "(ydesb ay) uo aul usaib sy Ag pejussaldal se) Jesk sy JO 8SIN0D BY) JOAO Junowe
SIU} JO % /" /6 109]|00 0} sem Jabie] S,[Iounod 8y "W9Z 03 sem g0/.00Z Ul Junoooe ojul uaye) ale salliedoid Aidws Jo)e [1Iounoo 8y} 0} aNp siealie pue Jual [e}o) 8y} ‘OpIMAID

‘A0 8y ssoloe sBuljjemp paumo-Ajlioyine [eoo] Uo pamo sjual oy} Jo uoilodold e se Ajoyiny ay) Ag pa1os||090 Jual 8y} Sainsesw J0}edlpul Siy |

juswwo)
0l°26 oL'26 0l'26 0L’26 0126 0L'26 0L'26 0L'26 0L'26 0lL'26 0lL'26 0L'26 ploysaiyl
0.°16 0L°,6 0.°16 0L°,6 0/'/6 0,6 0/'/6 0,6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 jebie]
G.°16 0€'26 ¥C' L6 LL'26 [4A13) 86'96 88'96 S1'96 G196 89'96 0596 8/,002
96 6£°96 6£°96 2€'96 81'96 2596 9596 81'96 81'96 ¥5°96 0596 ¥1'96 2/9002
Iy qo4 uep 2a(q AON 120 dag Bny Inp unp Aep ady
06
z6 o
o
¥6
96
86
ploysaiy L
1obie|
(0[0] 8/.00C
1/9002

fo

(apmA310) pa3a9]|09 Jual Jo uoniodold - 99 Ag



Srjoy

*10]e2IpUl
siy1 1suiebe aouewlopad 0) BulNgUIUOD YIOM UO UOHELUIOUI JayuNy Jo) 1iodal aa)IWwoo-gns juswabeue|y Buisnoy ay) JO UONI8S ,Sieally PuUe UoNo8(|0D) JUsy, 8] 89S

‘(ydeub ayy uo aul usalb ay) Aq pajuasaldal se) Jeak ay) JO 8SIN02 Y} J8AO uoIbBal SIY} Ul JUNOWe SIY} JO %€ 86 199|100 0} sI 18bue) s,|1ounod ay |

‘w13 Alerewixoidde sem go//00Z Ul Junoooe ojul uaye) aJe saiuadoid Aidws Ja)e [1ounod 8y 0) 8np siealle pue ual [e1o] ayl ‘Ao ay Jo uoibal YuoN a8yl uj

jusawwon
0€°.6 0€'.6 0€°.6 0€°.6 0€'.6 0€',6 0€'.6 0¢'.6 0€'L6 0€'/6 0€'L6 0€'.L6 PloysaiylL
0€£'86 0£'86 0€£'86 0€£'86 0£'86 0€£'86 0£'86 0£'86 0£'86 0€'86 0£'86 0£'86 jabiel
80°86 [AN1) 28'L6 69°L6 08,6 S9'/6 866 9¢'/6 I'L6 0v'.6 626 8/,002
12°16 L1°16 2c’'L6 81°,6 2¢'.6 61,6 61',6 81'/6 9’16 166 056 056 2/9002
Je|N qa4 uepr 29Q AON 190 dag Bny Inp unp Kepy ady
06
o
Z6 3
¥6
96
86
ploysaiy L
10bie |
0oL 8/.002
//9002

—fo

(y3oN) pa309]|02 Juai jo uoniodoid - e99 A9



Srjog

*Jojeoipul
siy} 1suiebe souewloylad 0) BuNGLIUOD YJOM UO UOHBWLIOUI JoyuN) 10} Lodal ea)iwwoo-gns juswabeue|y BuisSNoH 8y} JO UONDSS ,SJeally pue UoIos|[0)) JUsy, 8y} 983

"(ydeub sy} uo aulj usalb ay) Aq pajussaidal se) Jeah ay) JO 8SIN0D 8y} JOAC UOIBal SIY} Ul JUNOWE SIY) JO %G" /6 109]|02 0} I }ab.e) s,|lounod ay |

‘wg /3 Ajerewixoidde sem g0//00g Ul JUNODOE OJUI UsY e} ale saiadold Ajdwe Jsye [1Iounod 8y} 0} 8np siealle pue jual [e10} 8y} ‘Ao 8y Jo uoibal }Se AN Y} U]

juswwo)
0496 0496 0496 04796 0,96 0,96 0,96 0,96 0,96 0,96 0,96 0,96 PloysaiylL
0526 0526 0526 056 056 0S'/6 056 0526 056 0S°26 0526 0526 jabiel
60'86 12'L6 2¢0'.6 96°96 96'96 99'96 GG'96 596 L¥°96 GE'96 G2'96 8/,002
6196 6296 €196 71796 9€'96 £€'96 1696 S'96 S¥'96 8596 29'96 €5°96 2/9002
TN qa4 uepr 29Q AON 190 dag Bny Inp unp Kep ady
06
—
(o]
Z6
¥6
96
86
ploysaiy
10bie |
00l 8/.00C
//9002

o

(3s9M) pa199]109 jJual jo uoiuodold - e99 A9



1309

*J0]E21pUl
sIy) 1suiebe souewiopad 0} BuiNgLIUOD YIOM UO UOIBLWIOJUI JaYLN) J0) Jodal aa)iwwoo-gns uswabeuey BuisSNnoH ay) JO UOND8S ,Sieally PUB UoI08|[0D) JUdY, 8y) 89S

‘(ydeub ayy uo aul| usaib ayy Aq pajuasaidal se) Jeak ay} JO 8SIN0I BY) JSAO uoibal SIy} Ul JUNowe siy} JO %G 86 199]|02 0} sI Jabue) s,|1ounod ay |

‘wg’ 23 Ajlerewixoidde sem go//200g Ul JUNOD2E OUI USYE] ale saiuadold Aldws Jsye [1IDuUNod 8u) 0] anNp Siealie pue Jual [e1o] ay) ‘AlIo ay) Jo uoibal [enua) ay) u)

juswiwon
0€°26 0€'26 0€°26 0€'26 0€'/6 0€',6 0€'/6 0€',6 0€'/6 0€'.,6 0€'.,6 0€'/6 ploysaiyl
0G6°86 05'86 0G6°86 05'86 0586 0586 0586 0586 0586 0586 0586 0586 jebie]
12’86 16°26 28'L6 99'/6 1116 S9'/6 Lv'16 956 01’26 G€'L6 ¥€'.6 8/L002
0€°.6 61°,6 ¥Z' L6 9L’L6 81,6 1.6 60,6 20'L6 20’6 80°.,6 1,6 20°'/6 2/9002
Jepy qo4 uep 2aq AON 120 dag Bny Inp unp Aep ady
06
S
6
¥6
96
86
ploysaiy L
1obie|
(0[0] 8/,00C
1/9002

o

(fesauan) pa3oaljo9 jual jo uonuodoud - €99 A9



SIJoL

"Jojeoipul
siyj Jsuiebe souewloyiad 0} BuiINQLIUOD HJOM UO UOHEWLIOUI JoyLINy Jo) 1odal ea)iuwoo-gns jJuswabeuely BuisSNoH 8y} JO UONDSS ,SJeally puUe UoN09(|0D JUdY, 8y} 99

‘(ydeuB ayy uo sul| usalb ay) Aq pajussaidal se) Jeak ay) Jo 8SIN0D BY) JOAC UOIBaI SIY} Ul JUNoWe SIY} JO %S0 /6 1991|100 O} S JobJe) s,1ounod ay |

‘wl gL 3 Alerewixoidde sem go/200Z Ul JUnoooe ojul uaye) ale salledoid Aidws Jae [1Iounoo ay) 0) aNp siealie pue jual [ejo} ay) ‘AJIo 8y} jo uoibal jse] ay) uj

juswuwo)
0G°96 0G°96 0G°96 0G6°96 0596 0596 0596 0596 0596 0596 0596 0596 PloysaiylL
S0°/6 S0°,6 S0°26 S0°/6 S0°,6 S0°/6 S0'/6 S0'/6 S0'/6 S0'26 S0'/6 S0'/6 jabiel
80°.6 6996 29'96 97'96 €9'96 2296 68'G6 68'G6 0096 06°'S6 21’6 8/,002
¥'S6 ¥'S6 S¥'S6 7€°'G6 61'G6 9t'G6 2596 6£'G6 L¥'G6 y1'G6 92’96 02'S6 2/9002
Je|N qa4 uepr 29Q AON 190 dag Bny Inp unp Kep ady
06
z6 ™
(o]
¥6
96
86
ploysaiy
10bie ]
(0[0] 8/.00C
1/9002

o

(3se3) pa3o9j109 jJual jo uoiuodolid - e99 A9



Srjos

*J0]E21pUl

sIy) 1suiebe souewiopad 0] BuiNgLIUOD YIOM UO UOIELIOJUI J8YLN) J0) Jodal aa)iwwoo-gns uswabeuey BuisSnoy ay) Jo UONI8S ,Sieally PUB UoI09|[0D) JUdY, 8y) 89S

‘(ydeub ay) uo aul| usaib ayy Aq pajuasaidal se) Jeak ay} JO 8SIN0I BY) JSAO uoiepowwoodde Alejodwa) wodl Junowe siyl Jo 9%9°G6 1991109 03 s 19bUe) s,|1ounod ay |

"/61°G823 Sem g0//00¢ Ul JUnNoode ojul uaye) ale saiuadold Aidws Jayje [1I9UNod 8y} 0] 8Np Siealle pue Jual |ejo) ay) ‘uoepowwosde Aleiodws) 1o

(uonepowwosose Aiesodwal) pajoa||od Jual jo uoiodold - 99 A9

juswiwon
09'¥6 09'¥6 09'v6 09'v6 | 09'v6 09't6 09't6 09't6 09'v6 09'v6 09'v6 09't6 PloysaiyL
09'G6 09'G6 09'G6 09'G6 | 09°'G6 09'G6 09'G6 09'G6 09'G6 09°'G6 09'G6 09'66 jebie]
08°€6 29'v6 0S°€6 y1'€6 | 6716 1966 00'G6 0t'56 95°'G6 18'v6 1198 8/,002
90°¢€6 66°L6 €G°L6 29'06 | 62’6 0C'¢c6 ¥6°€6 G6°C6 10'€6 26'€6 86'C6 8E'6 2/9002
Jepy qed uep 2a(q 7 AON 120 dag Bny Inpe unpe Aely ady
08
S8 M
06
G6
ploysaiy L
1obie|
0oL 8/.00C
1/9002

oy



S13o6

*J0]E21pUl

sIy) 1suiebe souewiopad 0] BuiNgLIUOD YIOM UO UOIBLIOJUI JaYLN) J0) Jodal aaniwwoo-gns uswabeuey BuisSNoH 8y} JO UOND8S ,Sieally PUB UoI09|[0D JUdY, 8y) 89S

"slealle Jual ssoub syeem / uey) alow ul ale (%8 /) 0S6 PunoIe Yolym Jo ‘sjueus) 00z'ZL Alybnod ale aisy) ‘@AoH g uojybug u)

"SJUBUS) JO Jaquinu [210] 8y} Jo abejuaoiad e se siealle Jual SS0JB aloW IO SY98M / YIIM SJUBUS) JO J8qUINU 8y} Seinsesu Jojedipul Siy |

sJeale Judl ,SH99M / UeY) dI0W YJIM SJUBUSD} JO % - 99 AL

sjusawwon
09'8 09'8 09'8 09'8 09'8 09'8 09'8 09'8 09'8 09'8 09'8 09'8 PloysaiylL
09’2 09’2 09’2 092 092 092 092 09’2 092 092 092 092 jabiel
g8, 16'L 86°L 0’8 L8 '8 08'L 08’ L1 Sv'8 9’8 Lv'8 8/,002
€.°8 cL'8 198 8G'8 29'8 9¢'8 09’8 6€'8 6€'8 198 GS'8 99’8 2/9002
TN qa4 uepr 29Q AON 190 dag Bny Inp unp Kepy ady
0
3
To]
4 O
€
14
S
9
L
8
ploysaiy
10bie ]
6 8/.00C
1/9002

oy



Sr3o ol

*10]221pUl

sIy) 1suiebe souewiopad o) BuiNgLIUOD YIOM UO UOIBLIIOJUI JaYLN) 10} Jodal aa)iwwoo-gns uswabeuey BuisSnoy ay) JO UOND8S ,Sieally PUB UoI08|[0D JUaY, 8y) 89S

‘(aull usaib ay) AQ paledIpuUl SB) Siealie Ul SJUBUS) JO %G| UBY) 810W OU 0] Uoissassod BuIyeas sa21j0u aAI8S 0] SWIE [IDUN0D 8y “Jeak ay) 10 8SIN0D aY) J8AQ "UYdJB\

01 [udy wouy sessalbold Jeak ay) Se sasealoul SBAISS |IDUNOD By Jaquinu ay) os ‘Jeak ay) 1noybnouy) A1essadsu se paaIas ale uolssessod Buiyaas SeoIopN "Siealle Ul aJe oym

SjuBUS) JO JaqINU [B]0) 8y} Jo abejusaiad e se sieadle ul Buiag Jo Jnsal e se paAlas uoissassod Buiyass 801j0u pey aABY OYM SIUBUS] JO Jaquinu ay) sainsesw Jojesipul siy |

paAlas uoissassod Buijaas Sad1jou pey dABY OYM SJealle ul SJueud) Jo % - 999 Agd

sjuswwon
00°GlL slL'€l 0sclL ScLL 000l S.'8 0s'2 S29 00'S Sl'¢e 0s'C 1 jobie]
[ X4X4 S0°9¢ ¥9'€c cl'le LyLe 85'8l 0591 oLel oL'el €8, SLY 6L 8/,002
66'61 8r'El y9'¢ClL JARA" 80l 26’6 06'8 90, €6'S G2’ gl'e €8l 2/9002
Je|N qa4 uepr 29Q AON 190 dag Bny Inp unp Kepy ady
0
]
(o]
(¢e]
ol
Sl
0C
14
1obie|
0¢ 8/.00C
1/9002

o)



STJoI1

"Jojeoipul
siy} 1suiebe souewloyiad 0) BuNGLIUOD YJOM UO UOIeWLIOUI Joy}n) 1o} Lodal eapiwwoo-gns juswabeuely BuisnoH sy} jo uonoss ,awi| punoseuln] Ausdold Aydwg, oyl 89S

'sAep ¢ Jo 186.e) Jano 1snf jnsal jeul} e BulAlb ‘Jeak ay) Jo 1e)s ay) 1e sawly 1omo|s Ag 19sy0
sem spiemuo Jaquieidag wolj aouewlopad poob Al (ydelb ayy uo suil usaib ayy Agq pajuasaidal se) ssa| 0 SAep ¢ JO sl }19ja4 abelaAe Ue SABIYOE 0} SWIE [IDUN0D 8y |

‘sliedal Jofew Bulobispun sanuedold sepnjoxe
1Ng ‘uolepowwo22e palsyays pue papoddns sapnjoul SIY| ‘JUBOBA 8WO029q aAeY Aay} @0Uo sawoy Ajlioyine |00 18|24 0} sAep Jo Jaquinu abelaae 8y} sainseaw 10}edipul Siy |

sjuswwo)
00'0% 00'0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00'0% 00'0% 000t 000t 000 000 PloysalyL
00'0¢ 00'0¢ 00°0¢ 00°0¢ 00°0¢ 00°0¢ 00'0¢ 00'0¢ 00'0¢ 00'0¢ 00°0¢ 00°0¢ jebie]
19'le 0€e've 04'S¢ g€cee 05'9¢ [0} X4 0€'Ge oL'Le 00°'6€ 0s'ey 05’8y 00'L¥ 8/200C
62'6€ 8E’ Ly 0lL°0v LE°9Y 0l'6v 96°G¢E 9C’'LE 00'Le 68'8¢ 4514 8lL'Le 7E'LE 2/9002
Tep qa4 uep 29(Q AON 1920 dag Bny Inp unp Aep ady
0
I°]
(013 N~
©
Sl
(114
14
0€
1>
(014
14
ploysaiyl
10bie ]
0S 8/.00C

1/900¢

oy

Buisnoy Ajuoyjine [e20j }9]9.1 0} sAep ul awi} abesaAay - ZLzZ A9



sryoci

"anpJano si 81eolI8d ay) alaym saiuadoud jo uoiuodolud
8y} smoys Jeq ay} jo doj ay} je uonod mojjeA ayy ajiym ‘ejeaiilnad Ajeses seb jualing e si aiay} yolym Joy saiadolid asoyy Juasaidal anoge sieq ay) Jo suoniod anjq ay |

"9AOH g uoybug ui saiuadold yons 009‘0l Ajerewixosdde ase alay] ‘sajeoluad Alojes seb ayep 0] dn aaey saiuadoud Jueasial jje jey)
aInsua 0} sWie |IouUNod 8y "8)edlilad Alajes seb Jualind e si a1ay) Yyoiym Joyj Juswinba o yiomadid seb yim sawoy Ajioyine |eoo) jo abejuasiad sy} sainseaw J0jesipul siy |

sjusawwo)
00°00L 00°00L 00°00L 00°00L 00°00L 00°00L 00°001 00°00L 00°00L 00'00L 00°00L 00°001 jabiel
760 Le'L el 0c’L Lz €0l 160 080 160 gL 06'L 08l $s9%0.d Uj
90’66 69'86 8586 08'86 6.'86 16'86 €0'66 02’66 €0'66 S1'86 0186 02'86 9jediad
TN qa4 uep 29Q AON 190 dag Bny Inp unp Kepy ady
08
S8
0
(o]
06
G6
00l 10bie ]
$S8200.1d U]
pajeoyiied

" Fox

(ap1mAy1n) ajeosiuao Ajages seb Jualind e yum saadouad jo 9,



Srjoci

‘pauodal Buiaq Jo sAep Buppom J uiyum pasowsal ale niyelb jo sadAy JayiO ‘panodal Bulaq jo Aep BujIom | UIYIM paAOWI
pue Ajoud ybiy se paiisse|o ale AI0jeulwOSIp JO 1SI0B) ‘OAISUBYO Se paAisolad ale jey) el "wes) [erowal jielb ay) Jo sawiy asuodsal sy} seinseaw Jojedlpul siy |

sjuawwo)

00°06 00°06

00°06

00°06

00°06

0006

0006

00°06

00°06

0006

00°06

ploysaiyL

00001 00’001

00’001

0000}

00001

00°001

00°001

00'001

00°00}

00°00}

00°001

jobie]

0166

09'86

0v'86

0066

0086

00'v8

00°¢6

00'96

00'96

8/,002

00°¢. 00°001

00°26

00°001

00°¢8

008G

00°001

00°001

0096

0016

1/9002

|
00°26 W 00001 0026

go4 uepr

29Q

AON

0

dag

Bny

inre

unp

Kep

ady

sawi} jJabue} ulypm pajajdwos sqol jeaowau 1344elb Jo o

0S

o]

09

69

S9
0L
S
08
S8
06

G6
ploysaiy L
10618
00l 8/.00¢
1/9002

o



ST3ovi

‘pauodal Buiaq Jo sAep Buppom /7 uiyum pasowsal ale niyelb jo sadAy Jeyio ‘pariodal Buiaq Jo Aep Buiom | uiyum pasowsal pue Ajond ybiy
se palisse|o ale sAemyied Aoy sjonuisqo 1o plezey Alajes g yjjeay e Buisned sl jey) asnjal ying "wes) |[eAowal 9snjal Y|ng sy} JO sawil} asuodsal oy} sainseawl Jojesipul siy |

sjuawwon

00°06

00°06

0006

00°06

00°06

0006

00°06

00°06

00°06

00°06

0006

00°06

ploysaiy L

00001

00'ool

0o'ool

00°001

00’00l

00°001

00°001

00’00l

00°001

00’00l

00'001

00°001

jobie]

0026

00'001

0066

ov’'L6

0G°26

09'86

02°96

00°66

0016

00’16

0026

00°08

8/,002

00°96

0092

00'v8

00°€6

00'00l

00°001

00°001

00'00l

00°001

00°26

00'001

0066

2/9002

Iep

g4

uep

29Qq

AON

0

dag

Bny

Inf

unp

Aepy

ady

sawi} Jobae} ulypm pajajdwod sqol [eaowal asnyal y|nq 40 %,

0S

i}

70

09
S9
0L
S
08
G8
06

G6
ploysauay L
1obie|
001 8/.002C
//9002

oy



Srjoci

71



72



HOUSING CABINET Agenda Item 31
MEMBER MEETING Brighton & Hove City Council

Subject: External envelope repairs to Somerset & Wiltshire
House 2008

Date of Meeting: 22 July 2008

REPORT OF: Director of Adult Social Care & Housing

Contact Officer: Name: Simon Throp Tel: 29-6806

E-mail: Simon.throp@brighton-hove.gov.uk

Key Decision: Yes Forward Plan No. 2186
Wards Affected: Queens Park

FOR GENERAL RELEASE

1.
1.1

(1)

3.2

3.3

SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT:

To seek approval of the housing cabinet to give delegated authority to award
a contract for repairs to the external envelope of Somerset & Wiltshire house
to the best value supplier following a mini competition, procured through the
London Housing Consortia (LHC) in accordance with Contract Standing Order
CS0O 9.3

RECOMMENDATION:

That the Cabinet Member for Housing authorise that the Director of Adult
Social Care & Housing be given delegated powers to approve the award of the
contract for external envelope repairs to Somerset & Wiltshire House, following
financial due diligence and cost comparisons of the tenders offered under mini
competition from contractors on the LHC external envelope repairs framework,
following consultation with the Cabinet member for housing.

RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Following reports of water ingress around windows to various flats within
these blocks, a number of inspections where undertaken to identify the source
of the ingress by the council’s planned maintenance team.

These inspections have identified a breakdown of the pointing to the external
brickwork and to the cavity trays above the windows which is allowing water
into the cavity which then travels across the window heads into the flats.

The 2008-09 approved capital programme allowed £2,000,000 excluding fees
for the external envelope repairs to these blocks. It was further agreed with the
chair of the previous Housing Committee that the council will look to undertake
any additional work identified as being needed, such as new lightning
conductors, roof repairs etc to maximise the use of the scaffolding during
project.

73



3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

41
4.2

4.3

To enable the council to complete these works within this financial year,
allowing for leaseholder consultation and tendering, it is proposed to use the
London Housing Consortia’s (LHC), external envelope repairs framework. The
LHC is a specialist public sector building procurement consortium set up for
use, free of charge, by any public sector organisation wishing to achieve
efficiency savings in line with the Gershon review.

Contract standing orders (CSO) 9.3 allows the council to procure works to any
value in collaboration with other local authorities or other public or voluntary
sector bodies. Where the council is not the lead buyer, procurement
procedures shall follow the spirit of the CSQO'’s, and be in accordance with EU
Public Procurement Regulations.

In addition to their assistance in procuring the contract the LHC as part of their
role as a procurement network also carry out random inspections of the
installations on our behalf to ensure compliance with their framework KPls
reducing our management costs while maintaining quality.

The LHC framework allows individual clients to choose their own specific
contract terms. In this instance it is proposed to use a traditional JCT
intermediate form of contract.

The draft timetable of events is as follows:

Event Completion date
Appointment of consultants (Delegated 21 July 2008
authority)

Mini competition 1 September 2008
Tender report 8 September 2008
2" stage S20 notice 11 October 2008
Pre start meeting 18 October 2008
Commencement on site 24 November 2008
Completion April 2009
CONSULTATION

Section 20 consultation has commenced with all leaseholders.

Residents will be consulted on the works through their residents associations
and invited to nominate a number of representatives to form a site specific
panel in line with the new resident involvement strategy which forms part of the
new procurement strategy agreed by the P& R committee on 3 April 2008.

City Planning will be consulted on the repointing prior to commencement on
site.

74



5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:
Financial Implications:

The Housing Capital Programme 2008/09, approved by Policy & Resources on 3 April
2008, includes £2.12m for Somerset and Wiltshire High rise blocks essential health
and safety repairs to brickwork to maintain the exterior of the building. Approval was
also given to the commencement of the tender process for these essential structural
works.

Any Additional works identified as being required will be carried out to maximise the
use of the scaffolding with the additional costs of the works and how these will be
funded being reported through Capital Programme Monitoring reports during 2008/09.

The risk of not awarding the contract in August would result in the delay of the project
commencement and cause slippage of the approved Housing Capital Programme.

Finance Officer: Susie Allen, Principal Accountant. Date: 16 May 2008
5.1

Legal Implications:

This contract is a ‘works’ contract for the purposes of the EU Procurement Directive.,
and its value (£2m) falls below the threshold for works contracts (£3.49m).
Nevertheless, the council’s CSOs and the EU Directive require that sub-threshold
procurement processes comply with the ‘spirit’ of the Directive. The proposed tender
process does so comply. The Council must take the Human Rights Act into account in
respect of its actions but it is not considered that any individual’'s Human Rights Act
rights would be adversely affected by the recommendations in this report.

Lawyer consulted: Alison Leitch / Date: 19 May 2008

5.2
Equalities Implications:

5.3 An equalities impact assessment will be completed by the winning contractor
prior to commencement on site, as this is subject to their chosen method of
access.

Sustainability Implications:

54 The specifications will require contractors to submit a sustainability impact
statement on the contractor’s proposals to reduce waste, recycling, and the
reduction in CO2 emissions for this project.

Crime & Disorder Implications:

5.5 Specific security requirements for the scaffold and site compound will be built
into the specification prior to tender.

75



Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:

5.6 Using the council’s risk & opportunities management methodology the
significant risks and opportunities have been assessed and where amber or
red a risk register has been produced detailing action & delivery that will inform
the project.

Corporate / Citywide Implications:

57 This work meets one of the strategic goals of improving the housing stock and
ensuring that residents have a health living environment

6. EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S):
6.1 None considered

REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS

7.1 To enable the council to complete as much of the programme of work within
this financial year it will need to enter into a contract no later than the end of
October 2008. The cabinet preparation timetable does not allow enough time
for completion of the analysis, consultation with leaseholders and residents or
dealing with issues arising during negotiations or financial diligence, as well
as being ready to request approval to award the contract by the deadline date
of 15 August for the September cabinet members meeting or for the prior
housing management consultative committee on 23 June. (See contract
timetable above)).

7.2 In view of this it is requested that authority to enter into the contract be
delegated to the Director of Adult Social Care & Housing in consultation with
the Cabinet member.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices:
1. None
Documents In Members’ Rooms

1. None

Background Documents
1. None

76



	Agenda
	16 Minutes of the previous meeting
	27 Housing Green Paper Options Stage 1 Report
	Item 27 Green Paper CMM apdx

	28 Tender for a Contract for the Provision of a Security Wheel Clamping Service within Brighton & Hove
	29 Housing Strategy 2008-2013: Healthy Homes, Healthy Lives, Healthy City
	30 Housing Management Performance Report
	Item 30 Performance Report

	31 External Envelope Repairs to Somerset & Wiltshire House 2008

